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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

To the Board of Commissioners 

Lyon County Water District 

Kuttawa, Kentucky 


Opinions 
We have audited the accompanying financial stat.ements of the business-type activities of the Lyon 
County Water District as of and for the year ended- December 31, 2021, and the related notes to the 
financial statements, which collectively comptise the District's basic financial statements as listed in the 
table of contents. 

In our opinion, the financial ~tatements refclTed to abo,:,e present fairly, in all material respects, the 
. respective position ofthe busmess-type activitii~3ofthe Lyon County Water District as of December 31, 
2021, and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the 
year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America. 

Basis for Opinions 
We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America (GAAS) and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those 
standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 
section of our report. We are required to be independent of the Lyon County Water District, and to meet 
our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements retating to our 
audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our audit opinions. 

, 
Responsibilities of Managelh;ent for the Financial Statements 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair: presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the 
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of the financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error. 

In preparing the fitlancial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or 
events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the District's ability to continue as 
a going concern for twclve months beyond the financial statement date, including any currently known 
infolmatioll that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter. . 
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Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit ofthe Financial Statements . 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assUrance about whether the financial statementI'! as a whole are 
free from material m.isstatem~l1t, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that 
includes our opinions. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance 
and therefore is not a guaral~tee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS and Government 
Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a 
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from an error, as fraud may 
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal controls. 
Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the 
aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial 
statements. 

In performing an audit in accordance with OAAS and Government Auditing Standards, we: 

• Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the fmancial statements, whether due to 
fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures 
include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements. 

G Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order· to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose ofexpressing an opinion 
on the effectiveness of the Lyon County Water District's internal control. Accordingly, no such 
opinion is expressed. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness ,of acco:unting policies used and the reasonableness of significant 
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the 
financial statements. 

" Conclude whether, ill:our judgment, there are c~nditions or events, considered'~ the" aggregate, 
that raise substantial doubt about the Lyon County Water District's abiiity to continue as a going 
concern for a reasonable period of time. 

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit fmdings, and certain intemal control-related 
matters that we identified during the audit. 

Required Supplementary Information 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's 
discussion and analysis and budgetary comparison information, schedule of pension contributions, 
schedule of other postemployment benefits contributions, schedule ofproportionate share of net pension 
liability, and schedule of proportionate share of other postemployment benefits liability be presented to 
supplement the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and, 
although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Govemm~ntal Accounting 
Standards Board~ who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic 
fmancial statements in an appropriate operational, eConomic, or historical context. We have applied 
certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted. of inquiries of 
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for 
consistency with management's responses to our inqniries, the basic financial statements and other 
knowledge we obtained durhtg our audit or the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion 
or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with 
sufficient evidence"to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 



Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Stalldards 
In accordance" with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued a report dated July 25, 2022; on 
our consideration of the Lyon County Water District's internai control over financial reporting and our 
tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and 
other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over 
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing and not to provide an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the District's iP-ternal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an 
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the 
District's internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 

Eddyville, Kentucky 
July 25, 2022 

-3­



LYON COUNTY WATER DISTRICT 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 


DECEMBER 31, 2021 

(UNAUDITED) 


The Lyon County Water District ("Districttt
) offers Management's Discussion and Analysis to provide an 

overview and analysis of the District's financial activities for the year ended December 31, 2021. To 
fully understand the entire scope of the District's financial activities, this information should be read in 
conjunction with the financial statement provided in this document. 

FINANCIAL mGHLlGHTS 

• 	 The District's total assets and deferred outflows of resources exceeded its liabilities and 
deferred inflows ofresources as of December 31, 2021, by $3,214,923 (Net Position). 

• 	 The District's total net position decreased by $39,222 during the year compared to a 
$207,121 decrease in the prior year. 

• 	 The District's operating revenues increased by $48,367 over the prior year from 
$1,265,460 to $1,313,827. 

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Lyon County Water District's basic financial statements include a statement of net position, statement of 
revenues, expenses and changes in net position, statement of cash flows, and notes to the financial 
statements. 

The District's financial statements are prepared' on the accrual basis of accountmg in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting principles promulgated by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board 
(GASB). 

Statement of net position. The statement of net position presents the financial position of the District. 
It presents information on the District's assets, deferred outflows, liabilities, and deferred inflows, with 
the difference between the two reported as net position. Over time, increases or decreases in net position 
may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the District is improving or 
deteriorating. The statement ofnet position can be fotmd on page 8 of this report. 

Statement of revenues, expenses and ~h~nges in· net 'positioll. The statement of revenues, expenses 
and changes in net position p~esents information shoyting how the District's net position changed during 
the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as 80011 as the underlying event 
giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Revenues are recognized 
when they are earned, not when they are received. Expenses are recognized when .i~cm-red, not when 
they are paid. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only 
result in cash flows in fhture periods. The statement Of revenues, expenses and changes in net position is 
on page 9 of this report. 

Statement of cash flows. The statement of cash flows presents information on the effects changes in 
assets and liabilities have on cash during the course of the fiscal year and can be fotmd on page 10 of this 
report. 

Notes to the finan~ial statements. The notes provide additional infOlmation that is essential to a full 
understanding of the data provided in the District's financial statements. The notes to the financial 
statements can be found on pages 11-30 of this report. . 
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Required Supplementary Information. In addition to basic financial statements and accompanying 
notes, this report also presents certain required supplementary information which can be found on page 
31~39. 

OVERVIEW OF THE DISTRICT'S FINANCIAL POSITION AND 
, RESULTS OF OPER~TIONS 

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a govemment's financial 
position. In the case of the District, assets exceeded liabilities by $3,214,923 as of December 31,2021. 

The District's overall financial position and operations for the past two years are summarized as follows: 

LYON COUNTY WATER DISTRICT'S 

NET POSITION 


2021 2020 
Assets 

Current and otJIer assets $ 446,258 $ 486,677 
Capital assets 7,618,453 7,851,576 
Restricted assets 2921042 2852904 

Total A~sets 8,356,753 8,6241157 

Defened Outflows of Resources 97,806 1572393 

Liabilities 
Other liabilities 121,636 127,751 
Current portion oflong-term debt 138,163 178,425 
Long~term liabUjties 4,723,426 5,076,676 

Total Liabilities 4,9832225 5.382,852 

Deferred Inflows of Resources 256,411 144,553 

Net Position 
Net investment in capital assets 3,140,917 3,190,788 
Restricted 310,392 305,004 
Umestricted (2362386) (241 2647) 

Total Net Position $ 322142923 $ 3 22541145 

The District's investments in capital assets (e.g., land and construction in progress, buildings, plants and 
facilities, machinery and equipment, system studies and mapping and infrastructure), less any debt used 
to acquire those assets that is still outstanding is $3,140,917. The District uses these capital assets to 
provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. Although 
the District's investment in its capital assets are reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the 
resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets 
themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities. 

An additional portion of the District's net position $310,392 represents resources thhi are subject to 
external restriction on how they may be used. These resources are to be used for debt restrictions, capital 
projects, and customer deposits. 

The District's unrestricted net assets as of December 31,2021 is a deficit ofS236,386. 

Analysis of the District's Operations - Overall the District had a decrease in net position of $39,222. 
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The following table provides a summary of the District's operations for the year ended December 31, 
2021 and 2020. 

LYON COUNTY WATER DISTRICT 
CHANGES IN NET POSITION 

2021 2020 
Revenues 

Operating revenues $ 1,313,827 $ 1,265,460 
Investment income 218 606 
Capital grants 'and contributions 10,800 7,200 

Total revenues 1,324,845 1,273,266 

Expenses 
Water expenses 896,861 1,002,001 
Depreciation and amortization 334,418 338,856 
Interest expense 101,226 109,790 
Wastewater expenses 20,917 17,391 
Payroll and other taxes 10,645 12,349 

Total Expenses 1,364,067 1,480,387 

Change in net position (39,222) (207,121) 

Net position - J;anuary 1 3,254,145 3.461,266 

Net position - December 31 $ 3,214,923 $ 3,254.:145 

CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION 

The District's investment in capital assets for business-type activities as of December 31, 2021, amOlUlts 
to $7,618,453 (net of accumulated depreciation). This investment in capital assets includes land, 
buildings, plants and facilities, machinery and equipment, and infrastructure. 

2021 2020 
Business-type activities 
Capita! assets, riot being depreciated 

Land $ 121,772 $ 121,772 
Construction in progress 43,477 43 1477 

Total capital assets, not being depreciated 165,249 165;249 

Capital assets, being depreciated 
Distribution lines 6,637,217 6,864,407 
Sewel' lines 617,828 639~522 
Water tanks 22,596 32,885 
Equipment. 82,946 105,729 
Building 25,501 27,351 
Transportation 54,083 
Improvements 13,033 16,433 

Total capital assets, being depreciated 7,453,204 7,686,327 

Business-type activities capital assets, net $ 7,618,453 $ 7,851,576 
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During the year ended December 31,2021, the District acquired assets totaling $101,295. 

Additional information on the District's capital assets can be found in Note 5 of this repor.t. 

Long-term and other debt 
At the end of the current year, the Lyon County Water District had total debt of $4,444,782. Long-term 
debt at December 31, 2021, was as follows: 

2021 2020 
Long-Term Debt 
KY Rural Water $ 980,000 $ 1,025,000 
USDA Bond Series 2016 1,714,500 1,810,000 
Kentucky hlfrastructure Authority 1,704,886 1,791,311 
Farmers Bank 45~397 

Total Long-Term Debt $ 4,444,783 $ 4,626,311 

The District entered into a ~ew loan agreement with Farmers Bank. on December 15, 2021, for the 
purchase of a 2019 Dodge Ram 2500. The loan amount was for $45,397 with an interest rate of2.25% 
and is payable in full on December 15, 2023. 

Interest expense of $101,226 was incurred during the year ended December 31, 2021. 

Additional information on the District's long-term debt can be found in Notes 6 and 7 of this report. 

REQUEST FOR INFORMATION 

This financial report is designated to provide a general overview of the Lyon County Water District's 
finances for aU those with an' interest in the government's finances. Questions or requests for additional 
information may be addressed to Don Robertson, Chairman, Lyon County Water District, 5464 US 62 W, 
Kuttawa, Kentucky 42055. 
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Lyon County Water District 

Statement ofNet Position 


December 31, 2021 


Assets 
Current Assets 

Cash equivalents 
Customer accounts receivable 
Unbilled revemle 
Inventory 
Prepayments 
Restricted assets 

Cash equivalents 
Total Current Assets 

Noncurrent Assets 
Capital assets, net of depreciation 

Total Noncurrent Assets 
Other Assets 

Deposits 

Total Other Assets 

Total Assets 


Deferred Outflows of Resources 
Related to pensions 
Related to other postemployment benefits 

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 
Total Assets and Deferred Outflows of Resomces 

Liabilities 
Current Liabilities 

Accounts payable 

Accmed interest on debt 

Accrued liabilities 


.. Customers' deposits 

Long-tenn debt due in one year 


Total Current Liabilities 

Noncurrent Liabilities 

Compensated absences 
Long-term debt due after one year 
Net pension liability· . 
Net other postemployment benefit liability 
Total Noncurrent Liabilities 

Total Liabilities 
Deferred Inflows of Resources 


Related to debt 

Related to pensions 

Related to other postemployment benefits 


Total Deferred Inflows ofResources 
Total Liabilities Deferred Inflows ofResources 

Net Position 

Netinvestmellt in capital assets 

Restricted for 


Debt service 

Customer deposits 


Unrestricted . 

Total Net Position, 


71,565 
17,618 
1:4,103 
18,350 

138,163 
259,799 

:4,239 
4,306,620 

317,323 
95,244 

4,723,426 
~3,225 

32,753 
140,835 

82,823 
256,411 

5,239,636 

3,140,917 

292,Q42 
18,350 

(236,386) 
$ 3,214,923 

See accompanying notes to fmnncialstntements, 
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Lvon County Water District 

Statement of Revennes, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position 


For the Year Ended December 31, 2021 

Operating Revenue 

Water revenues $ 1,313~827 

Total Operating Revenues 1,313,827 

Operating Expenses 
Water expenses 896,861 
Depreciation 334,418 
Wastewater expenses 20,917 
Payroll and other taxes 101645 

Total Operating Expenses 11262,841 

Operating Income (Loss) 501986 

Nonoperating Reyenues (Exnenses} 
Investnentincorne 2.18 
Interest on debt (101,226) 

Total Nonoperating Revenue (Expenses) (101,008) 

Net Income Before Capital Contributions (50,022) 

Capital Contributions 
Tap"onfces 10,800 

Total Capital Contributions 10,800 

Cbange in Net Position (39,222) 

Net PositionNBeginning of Year 3,254J45 

Net Position-End of Year $ 3,214,923 

See accompanying notes to fmancial statements. 
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Lyon County Water District 
Statement of Cash Flows 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2021 

Cash Flows from Operating Activities 
Cash received from customers $ 1,313,561 
Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services (817,746) 
Cash payments to employees for services (140,547) 

Net Cash Provided By Operating Activities 355,268 

Cash Flows From Capital and Related Financing Activities 
Proceeds from capital debt 45,397 
Contributed capital 10,800 
Interest paid on debt (123,467) 
Principal paid on capital debt (226,927) 
Acquisition ofproperty, plant, and equipment (101,295) 

Net Cash Used By Capital and Related Financing Activities (395,492) 

Cash Flows Fl'om Investing Activities 
Income received on investments 

Net Cash Provided By Investing Activities 
! 

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash Equivalents (40,006) 

Cash Eguivalents~Beginning of Year 527,004 

Cash Eguivalents~End of Year $====4:=:863 ,9:=9=::8 

Reconciliation of Operating Income to Net Cash Provided 
By Operating Activities 

Operating Income (Loss) $ 50,986 
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash 

provided by operating activities: 
Depreciation 334,418 
Change in assets and liabilities 

Accounts receivable 484 
Inventory (7,540) 
Prepayments . 1,330 
Deferred outflows of resoUrces 59,587 

. Accounts payable 10,396 
. Customer deposits (750) 
Accrued liabilities 5,607 
Deferred pension and OPEB liabilities (212,832) 
Deferred inflows of pensions 113,582 
Net Cash Provided By Operating Activities $====3=55"",,2=6=8 

Reconciliation of Total, Cash 
Current Assets - Cash $ 194,956 
Restricted Assets - Cash 292,042 

Total Cash $===4~8~6':;.:99~8 

Non~cash Investing, Capital and Related Financing Activities ~ None 
See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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Lyon County Water District 

Notes to the Financial Statements 


For the Year Ended December 31, 2021 


1. 	 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
Organization 
The Lyon County Water District, (the District), is a county water district supported by funds 
derived from the sale of water and is operated by a District Board. The District is authorized 
under Kentucky Revised Statutes and constitutes a governmental subdivision of the 
Commonwealth of Kentucky. The District is located in Kuttawa, Kentucky and primarily serves 
the LyOll County, Kentucky area. 

The accounting and reporting policies of the District relating to the accompanying basic financial 

statements conform to accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America 

applicable to state and local governments. Generally accepted accounting principles for local 

governments include those principles prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Standards 

Board (GASB), the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants in the publication entitled 

Audits of State and Local Governmental Units and by the Financial Accounting Standards board 

(when applicable). The District follows GASB pronouncements as codified under GASB 62, The 

more significant accounting policies ofthe District are described below: 


Principles Determining Scope of Reporting Entitv 

The District's fil13ncial report includes only the funds of the District. The District has no 

oversight responsibility. for any other governmental entity and is not included in any other 

governrnental."reporting . entity" as defmed by the Governmental Accounting (Standards Board 

pronouncement The District's Board members are appointed by the County Judge Executive, a 

publicly elected official, and they have decision maldng authority, the authority to set rates, the 

power to designate management, the ability to significantly influence operations, and primary 

accountability for fiscal matters. 


Basis of Presentation: 

The accounts of the District are organized in accordance with the uniform system of accounts 

adopted by the Public Service Commission of Kentucky. Those accounts are organized on the 

basis of a proprietary fund type, specifically an enterprise fund. The operations of each fund are 

summarized by providing a separate set of self balancing accounts which include its assets, 

liabilities, net position,revenues and expenses. The following funds are used by the District: 


Proprietary Fund Types 
Proprietary funds are accounted for using the economic resources measurement focus and the 
accrual basis of accounting. The accounting objectives are determinations of net income, financial 
position, and cash flow .. All assets and liabilities are included on the Statement of Net Position. 

Measurement Focus/Basis of Accounting 
Measurement focus refers' to what is being measured; basis of accounting refers to when revenues 
and expenditures afe recognized in the accounts and reported in the financial statements, Basis of 
accounting relates to the timing of the measurement made, regardless of the rlll:laSurement fOCllS 
applied. The accounting and financial statements for a proprietary fund are reported using the 
economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. The economic 
resources measurement focus means all assets and al1liabilities (whether current or non-current) 
are included on the statement of net position, and the operating statements present increases 
(revenues) and decreases (expenses) in net total assets. Under the accrual basis of accounting, 
revenues are recognized when earned, including unbilled water services which are accrued. 
Expenses are recognized at the time the liability is incurred. 
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Lyon County Water District 

Notes to the Financial Statements 


}70r the Year Ended December 31, 2021 


Reclassifications 
Prior period financial statement amounts have been reclassified to conform to CUlTent period 
presentation. Operating income and net eamings for the prior period wel'e not impacted by the 
reclassifications. 

Sales of Water 
Charges to customers for the sale of water are based on rates approved by the Kentucky Public 
Service Commission (PSC). 

Budget 
The District is l'equired to follow budgetary guidelines established by the Public Service 
Commission and the D~partment of Rural Development. Those guidelines require: 

1) The District to E,'ubmit a proposed budget for the fiscal year commencing the following 
January 1. The operating budget includes proposed expenditures and the means offinancing 
them for the up~ming year. 

2) The District is required to submit a budget to the Deparlment of Rural Development for 
each fiscal year as stipulated in the bond agreement. 

For the year ended December 31, 2021, the District has complied with budgetary guidelines. 


Cash Equivalents! Investments 

Cash and cash equivalents are deposited with Branch Banking and Trust Company and Regions 

Bank. District ordinances authorize the District to invest in obligations of the U.S. Government 

and its instrumentalities, mutual funds, repurchase agreements, and demand deposits. All 

investments must be purchased through brokers/dealers or deposited with local financial 

institutions. 


For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, the District considers all cash ill banks and 

certificates of deposit with stated maturities of three months or less or available for withdrawal by 

management to be cash and cash equivalents. Cash equivalents consist of funds held in a sweep 

account in a financial i}'wtitution. 


Accounts Receivable 

The direct write-off method was used for recording uncoUectible accounts. No allowance for lID­


collectible accounts was deemed to be nee.ded. The District grants credit to customers, 

substantialJy all of whom are residents ofLyon County. Due to the large amount of small.account 

balances, the District does not feel these are at risk for loss due to credit concentrations. 


Prepaid Items , 

Payments made to velidors for services that will benefit periods beyond December 31, 2021 are 

recorded as prepaid items. 


Capital Assets 

Capital assets are stated at original cost as defined for regulatory purposes. The costs of additions 

to capital assets and replacement of retirement units are capitalized. Replacement of minor items 

of property is charged to expense as incurred. Depreciation is computed using the straight-line 

method. When assets are retired or otherwise disposed of, the cost and related accumulated 

depreciation are removed from the accounts, and any resulting gain or loss is recognized in income 

for the pedod. The cost of maintenance and repairs is charged to income as incurred; significant 

betterments are capitalized. ; 
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Lyon County Water DistIict 

Notes to the Financial Statements 


For the Year Ended December 31,2021 


Contributions from customers for the purpose of purchasing service connections to the utility plant 
are recorded as income when they are received. Depreciation on contributed assets is recorded as 
an expense in the statement of revenue and expense. Capital assets are depreciated over the 
following useful lives: 

Buildings 20 to 40 years 
Equipment 5 to 10 years 
Water and Sewer Lines 25 to 40 years 

Unearned Revenue 
The District recognizes certain revenue transactions as unearned revenue. Revenue cannot be 
recognized until it has been earned and is available to finance expenditures of the CUl'rent fiscal 
period. Revenue that is earned but not available is reported as a current liability or deferred inflow 
of resources until such time as the revenue becomes available. 

Inventory 
Inventories are generally used for repair and replacement of infrastructure and connection of new 
services and are stated at average cost. 

Restricted Assets 
The restricted assets have been handled in accordance with the provisions of the various enterprise 
fund revenue bond resolutions, loan resolutions, loan agreements, or by state or federal laws and 
regulations. When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the 
District's policy to usc restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as needed See Note 4 
for information describing restricted assets. 

Estimates 
The preparation of the District's fmancial statements in conformity with generally accepted 
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain 
reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates. 

Risk Management . 
The District is exposed to various risks ofloss related to torts; theft of, danmge to, and destruction 
of assets; errors and omissions; injUl'ies to employees; and natural disaster. During the year ended 
December 31, 2021, the District contracted with commercial insurance carriers for coverage of all 
risks mentioned above. Settled claims resulting from these risks have not exceeded commercial 
insurance coverage in any of the past three years. There were no significant reductions in 
coverage during the past three years. 

Pensions and Other Postemployment Benefits 
For purposes of measUl'ing the net pension and OPEB liabilities, deferred outflows of resources, 
and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions, pension expense, and other OPEB 
infonnation about the fiduciary. net position of the County Employees Retirement System In the 
Kentucky Public Pensions Authority (KPPA) and additions to/deductions from the plan's fiduciary 
net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by the KRS. For this 
purpose, benefits (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and 
payable in accordance with the benefit terms of the County Employees Retirement System. 
Investments are reported at fair value. 
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Lyon County Water District 

Notes to the Financial Statements 


For the Year Ended December 31, 2021 


Net Position 

IIi the financial statements, equity is classified as net position and displayed in three components. 

• Net investment in C211ital assets Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and M 

reduced by the outstanding balance of any borrowings that are attributable to the 
acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets net of ullspent financing 
proceeds. 

-Restricted net position M Net position with constraints placed on their use that are either 
(a) externally imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, laws, or regulations of other 
governments; or (b) imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling 
legislation. 

• Unrestricted net position All other, net position that does not meet the definition ofM 

"restricted" or "net investment in capital assets." 

Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources 
In addition to assets, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for 
deferred outflows of resources. This separate fInancial statement element, deferred outflows of 
resources, represents the cDnsumption .Of net pDsition that applies t.O future periods and so will n.Ot 
be recognized as an outflow .Of resources (expense/expenditure) until then. The District has two 
items tnat qualify for reporting in the category. deferred charges pensi.On, and deferred charges ­M 

.Other post-employment benefIts (OPEB). 

A deferred charge on refunding results from the difference in the can-ying value of refunded debt 
and its reacquisition price. This amount is deferred and amortized over the shorter of the life of 
the refunded or refunding debt. A deferred pension contribution results from pension 
contributions subsequent to the measurement date of the pension plan. This amount is deferred 
and recognized as a component of the change in pension plan liability in the next measurement 
period. Pension related deferred components include difference between expected and actual 
experience; the difference between projected and actuarial earnings on pension plan investments 
results from actual investment earnings above or below actuarial projected earnings; changes in 
assumptions; and changes in proportion and differences between employer contributions and 
proportionate share of :contributions. The~e pension related items are deferred an~ amortized over 
3-5 years as a c.Omponent of the pension expense. 

The deferred related pension and OPEB outflows results from pensi.On and opj:m c.Ontributi.Ons 
subsequent to the measurement date of the pension plan and OPEB and various changes resulting 
from actuarial pension. and OPEB measurements. The pension and OPEB contribution amounts 
are deferred and recognized as a component of the change in pension and OPEB plan liabilities in 
the next measurement period. The various changes resulting from actumial pension and OPEB 
measurements are defeo:ed and amortized in future periods as a component of the pension and 
OPEB expense.' ' 

In addition to liabilities, the statement of net position will sometimes report a sepm'ate section for 
deferred inflows of rysources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of 
resources, represents an acquisition .Of net position that applies to future periods and will not be 
recognized as an inflow ofresources (revenue) until that time. The District has two types of items 
repOited in this category, inflows related to the Districfs pension and OPEB plans that qualify for 
reporting in this category - deferred pension and OPEB related inflows. The various change..~ 
resulting from actuarial pension and OPEB measurements are deferred and amortized in future 
periods as a component Qfthe pension and OPEB expense. ' 
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Notes to the Financial Statements 


For the Year Ended December 31, 2021 


Recent Accounting Pronouncements 
As of December 31, 2021, the GASB has issued the following statements not yet required to be 
adopted by the District. 

GASB Statement No. 95 
GASB Statement No. 95, Postponement a/the Effective Dates a/Certain Authoritative Guidance, 
was issued May 2020 .. The primary objective of this Statement is to provide temporary relief to 
governments and other stakeholders in light of the COVID-19 pandemic. That objective is 
accomplished by postponing the effective dates of certain provisions in Statements and 
Implementation Guides that first became effective or are schednled to become effective for periods 
beginning after June 15,2018, and later. The following statement information has been updated to 
reflect the new effective dates. 

GASB Statement No. 87 
GASB Statement No. 87, Leases, was issued in June 2017. The provisions of this Statement are 
effective for periods beginning after June 15,2021. This Statement will increase the usefulness of 
governments' financial statements by required reporting of certain lease liabilities that currently 
are not required. It will enhance comparability of financial statements among governments by 
requiring lessees and lessors to report leases under a single method. This Statement also will 
enhance the decision-usefulness of the information provided to financial statement users by 
requiring notes to financial statements related to the timing, significance, and purpose of a 
government's leasing arrangements. The District's management has not yet determined the effect 
this statement will have on the financial statements. 

GASB Statement No. 91 
GASB Statement No. 91, Conduit Debt Obligations, was issued May 2019. The requirements of 
this Statement are effective for periods beginning after December 15, 2021. The primary 
objectives of this Statement are to provide a single method ofreporting conduit debt obligations by 
issuers and eliminate diversity in practice associated with (l) commitments extended by issuers, 
(2) arrangements assoc,iated with conduit debt obligations, and (3) related note disclosures. This 
Statement achieves those objectives by clarifying the existing definition of a conduit debt 
obligation; establishing that a conduit debt obligation is not a liability of the issuer; establishing 
standards of accounting and financial reporting of additional commitments and voluntary 
commitments extended by issuers and arrangements associated with conduit debt obligations; and 
improving required note disclosures. The District's management has not yet determined the effect 
this Statement will have on the financial statements. ' 

GASB Statement No. 92 
GASB Statement No. 92, Omnibus 2020, was issued in January 2020. The requirements of this 
Statement are effective for periods beginning after June 15,2021. The objectives ,of this Statement 
are to enhance comparability in accounting and financial reporting and to improve the consistency 
of authoritative literature by addressing practice issues that have been identified during 
implementation and application of certain GASB Statements. The Districtls management has not 
yet determined the effect this statement wi11 have on the financial statements. ' 

. . 

GASB Statement No. 93 
GASB Statement No. 93, Replacement 0/Interbank Offered Rates, was issued March 2020. The 
requirements of this Statement are effective for periods beginning after J1Ule 15, 2021. The 
objective of this Statement is to address accounting and financial reporting implications that result 
trom the replacement of an mOR (interbank offered rate). The District1s management has not yet 
determined the effect this statement will have on the financial statements. 
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Subsequent Events 
The District has evaluated subsequent events through July 25,2022, the date which the financial 
statements were available to be issued. 

2. 	 LEGAL CO:MPLIANCE 
Deficit Net Position 
There was not a deficit net position for the year ended December 31, 2021. 

3. 	 DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS 

A. 	 Net Position 
The captions 011 1;he statement of net position for cash, investments, and restricted assets 
enumerated as to deposits and investments and the amounts in total are as follows: 

De20sits ... Investments Total 
Cash equivalents $ 194,956 $ $ 194,956 
Restricted assets 

Cash equivalents 292,042 2921042 
Total $ 4861998 :& 486.998 

B. 	 Deposits 
At year-end, the carrying amount of the District's deposits in financial institutions were 
$486,998, and the bank balances were $491,389. Of the bank balances, $491,389 was 
covered by federal depository insurance. 

C. . Investments 
Interest Rate Risk 
Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of 
an investment. Investments held for longer periods are subject to increased risk of adverse 
interest rate changes. The District does not have a fonnal investment policy that limits 
investment maturities as a means of managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from 
increasing interest rates. 

Credit Risk 
Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its 
obligations. The custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that a government will not be 
able to recover the value of the investment or collateral securities that are in the possession of 
an outside party if the counterparty to the transaction fails. 

Concentration ofCredit Risk 
Concentration of credit risk is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of the District's 
investment in a single issuer. The District does not place any limit on the amount that may be 
invested with one issuer. . \ 

4. 	 RESTRICTED NET POSITION 

Net Assets Restricted for Debt Retirement 


Depreciation Sinking KIA Loan 
Funds 

Cash equivalents $ 163,910 	 $ 123,335 
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Notes to the Financial Statements 


For the Year Ended December 31. 2021 


Revenue Fund: All income and revenues derived from the operation of the system shall be 
deposited promptly and as received to the Lyon County Water Revenue Fund. The monies 
deposited into the Revenue Fund shall be expended only in the manner and order as follows: 

1. Regions Sinking Fund 
2. Depreciation Reserve Fund 
3. Operation and Maintenance Fund 

Regions Sinking Fund: The District holds cash deposits in the amount of$72,140 in the Regions 
Trust Cash Sweep ill (RTCS). RTCS is a bank deposit account offered through Regions 
Institutional Services. The RTCS does not directly invest in securities. It is a deposit account that 
is collateralized by government securities. Collateral may include: 

- Interest bearing obligations of the U.S. Government 

- Senior debt obligations of any U.S. Government Agency, 

- And/or municipal securities with an underlying rating of A or better. 


RTCS is FDIC Insured up to $250,000.. Deposit account amounts in excess of $250,000 are 
secured by perfected liens on Regions Bank's secwities in an amount not less than 105% of the 
total excess deposits. In the event of a default, the collateral reverts to the Collateral Agent to be 
distributed to the account owners. RTCS deposits are identified as "cash" on client statements; 
there are no market value fluctuations. The sinking fund was established for the purpose ofpaying 
the principal and interest on the Kentucky Rural Water Finance Corporation Public Projects 
Revenue Bonds Series 2013 C. The ordinance requires that the amount deposited each month 
equals one-sixth of the next succeeding interest requirement of the next sllcceeding interest due 
date and one-twelfth of the principal requirements becoming due on the note on the next 
succeeding January 1. . A separate sinking fund is to be established for the purpose of paying the 
principal and interest on the Waterworks Revenue Bonds Series 2016. The District is required to 
deposit $845 per month until the account reaches $101,400. The deposits are to be resumed any 
time the accotmt falls below $101,400. 
Depreciation Reserve.: The ordinances requires Lyon County Water District to make monthly 
contdbutions to this fund after observing the priority of deposits into the KIA Loan Fund and the 
Sinking Fund. The funds in the Depreciation Fund can be expended for the purpose of paying the 
cost of unusual or extraordinary maintenance, repairs, renewals, or replacements, and the cost of 
constructing additions, and improvements to tlle system. The District is to make $510 monthly 
deposits until a required minimwn balance of $61,200 is met. The District is to make $295 
monthly deposits over the life of the loan. At December 31, 2020, the balance of the Depreciation 
Reserve Fund was $163)910. 
Operations and Maintenance Fond: Transfers shall be made monthly from the Revenue Fund to 
the Ope.rations and Maintenance Fund so that the various operation and maintenance expenses of 
such system are met and a two (2) month pperating reserve established and maintained. Anyfunds 
remaining in Operation and Maintenance Fund after meeting the expenses 0'£ operating such 
system shall be transferred to the Revenue Fund· and disbursed in accordance with the above 
provisions until such time as the Sinking Ftmd and Depreciation Fund are current and the required 
balances established; and then excess funds may be invested in direct obligations of or obligations 
which are fully guaranteed by the United States Government with such maturities so that m01leys 
shall be available in the respective Funds for the pW'poses for which same are established. 

The new Waterworks Revenue Bonds 2016 require the District to fund an accoUnt for short-lived 
assets by depositing a swn of $750 monthly into the account. The funds in the short-lived asset 
account may be used by the District as needed to replace or add sholt-lived assets in the District's 
water system. This short-lived assets reserve amount replaces any previous short-lived assets 
requirements previously set with any prior RUS loan. 
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5. CAPITAL ASSETS 
A summary of proprietary fund property, plant, and equipment at December 31, 2021 for business-
type activities follows: 

Beginning Ending 
Balance Increases Decreases Balance 

Business-type activities 
Capital assets, not being depreciated 
Land $ 121,772 $ $ $ 121,772 
Construction in progress 43 2477 43,477 
Total capital assets, not being depreciated 1652249 165,249 

Capital assets, being depreciated 
Distribution lines 
Sewer lines 
Water tanks 
Machinery and equipment 
Building 
Transportation 
Improvement 
Total capital assets, being depreciated 

11,328,132 
867,725 
422,707 
295,770 

73,976 
87,129 
341000 

13J09,439 

34,817 

11,478 

55,000 

101,295 

11,362,949 
867,725 
422,707 
307,248 
73,976 

142,129 
34,000 

13,210,734 

Less accumulated depreciation for 
Distribution lines 
Sewer lines 
Water tanks 
Machinery and equipment 
Building 
Transportation 
Improvement 
Total accumulated depreciation 

(4,463,725) 
(228,203) 
(389;822) 
(190,041) 

(46,625) 
(87,129) 
(17,567) 

(5,423,112) 

(262,007) 
(21,693) 
(10,288) 
(34,262) 

(1,851) 
(917) 

(3,400) 
(334,418) 

(4,725,732) 
(249,896) 
(400,110) 
(224,303) 

(48,476) 
(88,046) 
(20,967) 

(5 1757,530) 

Total capital assets, being depreciated, net 71686,327 (233,123) 7,453,204 

Business-type activities capital assets, net $ . 7
1
851,576 $ (233J23) $ $ 7,618,453 

Depreciation charged to·income was $334,418. 
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6. 	 DEBT OBLIGATIONS 
Revenue Bonds Payable 

Interest Maturity Balance Due in 
DescriQtion 12/3112021 One Year 

Waterworks Revenue Bonds 
Regions - Series 2013 C 3.5% 2040 $ 980,000 $ 50,000 
Kentucky Infrastructure Authority 1.875% 2046 1,704,886 88,163 
USDA - Series 2016 2.0% 2046 1~714:500 

Total 	 $ 4,399:386 $ 138,163 

Principal and interest requirements of the revenue bonds payable as ofDecember 31,2021 are: 

Year Ending 	 Premium Interest 
December 31, PrinciQal Total & Fees 

2022 $ 138,163 1,724 $ 73,419 $ 73,419 
2023 189,936 1,724 100,829 100,829 
2024 193,243 1,724 95,443 95,443 
2025 201,587 1,724 90,007 90,007 
2026 204,968 1,724 84,861 84,861 

2027-2031 1,119,908 8,619 344,837 344,837 
·2032-2036 1,219,942 8,619 195,821 195,821 
2037-2041 669,639 1,724 73,988 73,988 
2042-2046 462,000 21:675 21,676 

Total $ 4,399,386 $ 21.582 $ 1,080,880 $ 1,080,881 

Series 2013 C 
In an ordinance of the Board of Commissioners, adopted on October 3, 1995, the District 
authorized and thereafter issued its $996,000 "Water Revenue Bonds, Series 1995" for the purpose 
of providing funds for the installation of major extensions and additions to the system. All bonds 
of this issue maturing on or after January 1, 1999, shall be subj ect to redemptional' prepayment at 
the option of the District prior to maturity in whole, 01' from time to time, in part, in the inverse 
order at pal' plus accrued interest provided that Rural Economic Development is bolder of the 
~~. 	 ­

In an ordinance of the Board of Commissioners, adopted on September 13, 2002, the District 
authorized and thereafter issued its $594,000 "Water Revenue Bonds, Series 2002" for the purpose 
of providing funds for the installation of major extensions and additions to the system. All bonds 
of this issue maturing on or after January 1, 1999, shall be subject to redemptional' prepayment at 
the option of the District prior to maturity in whole, or from time to time, in part, in the inverse 
order at par plus accrued interest provided that Rm-al Economic Development is holder of the 
bonds. 

Both bonds were refinanced for $1,305,000 under Kentucky Rural Water Finance Corporation 
Public Projects Refundfng and Improvement Revenue Bonds Series 2013 Cas of March 27, 2013. 

The Series 2013 C bond, referred to above, mature as to principalin installment!> on January 1, in 
each of the years and shall bear interest from their issue dates Ulltil payment of principal. Interest 
is payable semiannually on June 1 and January 1, of each year as established by the ordinance. 
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All the Revenue Bonds are payable solely from, and secured by, a first pledge of the water 
revenues. So long as any of the bonds are outstanding and unpaid, the District shall continuously 
be maintained and operated in good condition. Rates and charges for services rendered will be 
imposed and collected so that gross revenues will be sufficient at all times, to provide for the 
payment of the operation and maintenance of the water plant, and to maintain the Depreciation and 
Sinking Funds described in Note 4. 

If there is any default in the payment of the principal or interest on any of the outstanding bonds 
and suit is filed by a holder of said bond the court-having jurisdiction may appoint a receiver to 
administer the District with the power to charge and collect rates. These collected rates shall be 
sufficient to provide for the payment of the outstanding bonds and the operating and maintenance 
expenses. The income and revenues shall be in confonnity with the bond resolution and the 
provisions of the applicable laws of Kentucky. 

The bond covenants require that the rates for all utility services rendered by the District must be 
reasonable. The District must maintain adequate public liability insurance including fire, 
windstonn, fidelity bonds, and the hazards covered by a standard extended coveiage policy. The 
bond covenant also requires an audit of the books of record and account peltinent to the system of 
the District within 60 days of year~end. 
Series 2016 
On December 31,2016, the District issued $1,900,000 Waterworks Revenue Bonds, Series 2016, 
for the purpose of extensions, additions, and improvements to the existing waterworks system. 
The bonds have an interest rate of 1.875% and will mature on January 1,2046. The bond .issue 
calls for semiannual interest payments and annual principal payments. The bonds require the 
District to establish an additional sinking fund to pay the principal and interest on the bonds. 

Kentucky Infrastructure Authority 
The District entered into an agreement with Kentucky Infrastructure Authority to finance a system 
upgrade totalillg $2,000,000. The bonds have an interest rate of 2.0% and will mature on June I, 
2038. The bond issue ~aHs for semiannual interest payments and annual principal payments. The 
bonds require the DistrlCif to establish a replacement reserve account. The annual replacement cost 
is $5,000 and should be added to the replacement account each December 1 tmtil the balance 
reaches $50,000 and maintained for the life of the loan. 

Note Payable 

The District entered into a new loan agreement with Fanners Banle on December 15, 2021, to 

purchase a Dodge truck. The amount financed was $45,397 with an interest rate of 2.25%. The 

loan payments will be interest only with one principal payment due on December 15,2023. 


Changes in Business-Type Activities Debt . 

A summary of changes in the business~type activities debt for the year ended December 31,2021 

follows: 

Business-T;tpe Activities 

Balance 
12/31/2020 

Debt 
Proceeds 

Principal 
Pa:yments 

Balance 
12/3112021 

Due Within 
One Year 

Note Payable - Fatmers:Bank 
Revenue Bonds Payable 
Total Business-Type Activities 

$ 
4,626,311 

$4,626,311 

$ 45,397 

$ 45,397 

$ 
226,925 

$ 226,925 

$ 45,397 
4,399,386 

$1.,444,783 

$ 
1382163 

$ 138,163 

Interest expense for the year was $101,226. 
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7. EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT PLAN 

County Employees' Retirement System 

Plan description. The District is a participant in the Commonwealth of Kentuckyls COlmty 
Employees' Retirement System (eERS), a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension 
plan administered by the Kentucky Public Pensions Authority (KPPA). The CERS pension plan 
has two categories: Hazardous for sworn police and fire employees and Nonhazardous for general 
employees. The KPPA is the successor to Kentucky Retirement Systems and was created by state 
statute under Kentucky Revised StatuteCKRSI!) Sections 61.645, as amended by House Bill 484 
and House Bill 9 of the 2020 and 2021 regular sessions, respectively, of the Kentucky General 
Assembly. These amendments 1;r:ansfen'ed governance of the eERS to a separate nine member 
board of trustees. Th'e eERS Board of Trustees is responsible for the proper operation and 
administration of the CE,RS. The KPPA issues a publicly available annual comprehensive 
fmancial containing CERS information that can be obtained from https://kyret.ky.gov. 

Benfifits provided. eERS provides retirement, health insurance, and death and disability benefits 
to plan employees and beneficiaries. Employees are vested in the plan after five years service, 
For retirement purposes, nonhazardous employees are grouped into three tiers, based on hire date .. 

Nonhazardous members 

Tier I Participatioll.date Prior to September 1, 2008 

Unreduced retirement 27 years of service or 65 years old 


Minimum 5 years of service and 55 years old 

Reduced retirement Minimum 25 years of service and any age, 


Tier 2 Participation date September 1, 2008 and December 31, 2013 
Unreduced retirement Minimlnn 5 years of service and 65 years old 

Age of 57 or older and sum of service years plus age equalS? 
Reduced retirement Minimum 10 years of service and 60 years old 

Tier 3 PlUticipation date After December 31, 2013 
Unreduced retirement Minimum 5 years of service and 65 years old 

Age of 57 or older and sum of service years plus age equal 87 
Reduced retirement Not available 

Plan Funding. State statute requires active members to contribute a percentage of creditable 
compensation based on the tier: 

Required Contributions 
Tier 1 5% 
Tier 2 5% plus I% for insurance 
Tier 3 5% plus I % for insurance 

Employers are required by state statute (KRS 78.545(33)) to contribute the reIllaining amounts 
necessary to pay benefits when due. These contribution rates are determined' by the Board of 
Trustees annually based upon actuarial valuations. For the year ended December 31, 2021, the 
employer contribution rate was 19.30% for the period January 1, 2021 to June 30, 2021; and 
21.1?% for the period July 1, 2021 to December 31, 2021, respectively of members' nonhazardous 
salaries. The employer contribution when combined with employee contributions are expected to 
finance the costs of benefits earned by employees during the year, with an additional amount to 
finance any unfunde4 accrued liability. The contribution requirements and the amounts 
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contributed to CERS for the year endi11g December 31, 2021, were $31,491. Of this am01U1t, 
$25,024 is considered contributed to the pension requirement and $6,467 is considered contributed 
to the health insurance requirement. 

Pension liabilities, pension expense, and deferred outflows ofresources and deferred inflows of 
resources related to pensions. At December 31, 2021, the District reported a liability of $317,323 
for its proportionate share of the net pension liability. The net pension liability was measured as 
of June 30,2021. House Bill 8 passed during the 20211egislative session changed how employer 
contributions are allocated and collected form the participating employers in the KERS 
Nonhazardous plan. Therefore, the calculation of the proportionate share of the Collective 
Pension Amounts for employers that pal1icipate in the KERS Nonhazardous pension plan has been 
updated since June 30, 2020. The propOltionate share of the Collective Pension Amounts for 
employers that participate in KERS Nonhazardous plan is based upon their allocation of the 
amortization cost, as specified under the revised statutes. It is further based upon their allocation 
of the normal cost portibn of the required contribution, as allocated by actual salary for fiscal year 
ending June 30, 2021. The fmal proportionate share calculation, which represents an employer's 
share of the long-term contribution effort assumes the amortization cost is approximately 90% of 
the aggregate required contribution for the fund. Employer contributions are accrued when earned 
and the employer has made a formal commitment to provide the contributions. At June 30, 2021, 
the District's proportion was .004977%. 

Pension expense. As aresult of its requirement to contribute to CERS, the Distliot recognized a 
negative pension expense of ($9,318) for the year ended December 31, 2021. At December 31, 
2021, the District reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources from 
the following sources as a result of its requirements to co'ntribute to CERS: 

.. D~ferred Deferred 
Outflows Inflows 

ofResources 

Net differences between expected and actual experience $ 3,644 $ 3,080 

Net differences between projected and actual investment 

eamings 12,310 54,604 

Change of assumption .4,259 

Changes in proportion and differences between 

employer contributions and share of contributions 5,402 83,151 

Contributions subsequent to the measurement date 13 2354 

Totals $ 38,969 $- 140,835 
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Deferred Outflows ofResources. The $13,354 reported as defen'ed outflows of resources related 
to pensions resulting from the District's contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be 
recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year ending December 31, 2022. Other 
amounts reported as defen-ed outflows of resources and defen-ed inflows of resources related to 
pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows: 

Amortization! 
Years Ending (Accretion) 

December 31, 2022 $ (49,670) 

December 31, 2023 (40,865) 

December 31, 2024 (11,440) 

December 31, 2025 <13,245) 

Total $ (115,220) 

Actuarial assumptions. The total pension liability, net pension liability,' and sensitivity 
information as of June JO, 2021 were based on. an actuarial valuation date of June 30, 2020. The 
total pension liability was rolled forward from the valuation date (June 30, 2020) to the plan's 
fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, using generally accepted actuarial principles. 

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2021 valuation was based on the results of an 
actuarial experience study for the period July 1, 2013 - June 30, 2018. 

There have been no actuarial assumption or method changes since JUne 30, 2020. Senate Bill 169 
passed during the 2021 legislative session increased the disability benefits for certain qualifying 
members who become "totally and permanently disabled" in the line of duty or as a result of a 
duty-related disability. The total pension liability as of June 30, 2021, is determined using these 
updated benefit provisions. 

House Bill 8 passed during the 2021 legislative session changed how employer contributions are 
allocated and collected from the participating employer ill the KERS Nonhazardous plan. This 
change does not impact the calculation of the total pension liability but does impact the allocation 
of required contributioJ;ls amongst the participating employers. As a result of this legislation, there 
are several employers that will experience a relatively large change in proportionate share of the 
Collective Pension Amounts in the KERB Nonhazardous pension plan from 2020 to 2021. 

House Bill 1 passed during the 2019 legislative session and allowed certain agencies in the KERB 
Nonhazardous plan to elect to cease participating in the fund as of June 30, 2020, under different 
provisions than were previously established. Senate Bill 249 passed during the, 2020 legislative 
session delayed I the effective date of cessation for these provisions to June 30,' 2021. Only one 
employer elected to cease participation under these provisions and freeze benefit accruals for their 
employees. As such, there is no material impact on the total pension liability due to this 
legislation. There were no other material plan provision changes. 

Senate Bill 249 passed during the 2020 Legislative Session changed the funding period for the 
amortization of the unflmded liability to 30 years as of June 30, 2019. Gains and losses incurring 
in future years will be amortized over separate 20 yew: amortization bases. This change does not 
impact the calculation of total pension liability and on1y impacts the calculation ofthe contribution 
rates that would be payable starting July 1, 2020. ' 
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The actuarial assumptions are: 

Inflation 2.30% 

Payroll growth rate 2.00% for CERS Nonhazardous 

Salary increases 3.30% to 10.30%, varies by service 

Investment rate ofreturn 6.25% 

The mortality table used for active members was Pub-201O General Mortality Table, projected 
with the ultimate rates from the MP-2014 mortality improvement scale using a base year of 2010. 
The mortality table used for non-disabled retired members was a system-specific mortality table 
based on mortality experience from 2013-2018, projected with the ultimate rates from MP-2014 
mortality improvement scale using a base year of 2019. The mortality table used for the disabled 
members was Pub-2010 Disabled Mortality table, with a 4-year set-forward for both male and 
female rates, projected with the ultimate rates from the MP-2014 mortality improvement scale 
using a base year of201O. 

The long-term expected rate of return on piau assets is reviewed as part of the regular experience 
studies prepared every five years. The IOllg-term(lO-year) expected rates of return were 
detennined by using a building block method in which best estimated ranges of expected future 
real rates of returns are developed for each asset class. The ranges were combined by weighting 
the expected future real rate of return by the target asset allocation percentage. The target 
aUocation and best estimates of arithmetic real rate of return for each major asset class are 
summarized in the following table: 

Target Long-Term Nominal 
Asset Class Allocation Rate of Return 
Growth 

US Equity 
Non US Equity 
Private Equity 
Specialty CreditlHigh Yield 

Liquidity 
Core Bonds 
Cash 

Diversifying Strategies 
Real Estate 
Opportunistic 
Real Return 

Total 
Expected real return 
Long-term inflation assumption 

68.50% 
21.75% 5.70% 
21.75% 6.35% 
10.00% 9.70% 
15.00% 2.80% 
11.50% 
10.00% 0.00% 
1.50% (0.60)% 

20.00% 
10.00% 5:40% 
0.00% N/A 
10.00% 4.55% 

100.00% 
5.00% 
2.30% 

Discount Rate. The single discount rate used to measure the total pension liability for the fiscal 
plan year ending June 30, 2021, was 6.25% for nonhazardous and hazardous employees. The 
projection of cash flows used to determine the single discount rate for each plan must include an 
assumption regarding actual employer contributions made each future year. Except where noted 
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below, future contributions are projected asswning that each participating employer in each 
pension plan contributes the actuarially determined employer contribution each future year 
calculated in accordance with the current funding policy, as most recently revised by House Bill 8, 
passed during the 2021 legislative session. The assumed future employee contributions reflect the 
provisions of House Bill 362 (passed during the 2018 legislative session) which limit the increases 
to the employer contribution rates to 12% over the prior fiscal year through June 30, 2028. The 
discount fate detennination does not use a municipaJ. bond rate. 

Sensitivity of the District's proportionate share of the net pension liability to changes in the 
discount rate. The following presents the District!s proportionate share of the net pension liability 
calculated using the discount rate of 6:25%, as welt as what the District's proportionate share of 
the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is l-percentage­
point lower (5.25%) or I-percentage-point higher (7.25%) than the current rate: 

1% Current 1% 
Decrease Discount Increase 

5.25% Rate 6.25% 7.25% 
The District's proportionate share of 

the net pension liability $ 406,982 $ 317,323 $ 243,132 
1 

Payables to thepension plan. At December 31. 2021, the fmancial statements include $3,116 in 
contractually required employee pension contn'butions primarily for the month ended December 
31,2021. The obligation was paid within prescribed time limits. 

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position. Detailed information about the pension plan's fiduciat.y net 
position is available in the separately issued annual comprehensive fmaneial report issued by the 
Kentucky Public Pensions Authority and can be found at https:/lkyret.ky.gov. 

Other Postemployment Benefit Plan (OPEB) 

CERS Medical Insurance Plan 
Plan description. The District is a participant in the Commonwealth of Kentuckis County 
Employees! Retirement System (eERS), a cost-sharing multiple-employer dermed benefit 
postemployment benefit plan (OPEB) administered by the Kentucky Public Pensions Authority 
(KPPA). The KPPA is the successor to Kentucky Retirement Systems and was created by state 
statute under Kentucky Revised· StatUte ("KRSIT) Sections 61.645, as amended hy House Bil1484
and House Bill 9 of the 2020 'and 2021 regular sessions, respectively, of the Kentucky General 
Assembly. These amendments transferred governance of the CERS to a separate niue member 
board of trustees. The CERS Board of Tl1lstees is responsible for the proper operation and 
administration of the CERS. The KPPA issues a publicly available annual comprehensive 
financial containing eERS information that can be obtained from https:llkyret.ky~gov. 

Benefits prOVided. The eERS Nonhazardous Insurance Fund is a cost-sharing multiple-employer 
defined .benefit OPES plan that covers substantially all regular full-time members employed in 
positions of each participating county, city, and school board, and any additional eligible local 
agencies electing to pruticipate in the System. The plan provides for health insl.U'aUce benefits to 
plan members. OPEB may be extended to beneficiaries of plan members under certain 
circumstances. 
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Contributions. Per Kentucky Revised Statutes 78.545 (33), contribution requirements are 
established and may be amended by the KPPA Board. The District's required contribution rate for 
non~hazardous employees was 4.76% for the period January 1,2021 to June 30,2021; and 5.78% 
for the period July I, 2021 to December 31, 2021. 

Employees hired after September 1, 2003, are required to contribute an additional 1% of their 
covered payroll to the insurance fund. Contributions are deposited to an accolmt created for the 
payment of health insurance benefits under 26 USC Section 401 (h). These members are classified 
in the Tier 2/Tier 3 structure of benefits and the 1% contribution to 401(h) account is non­
refundable. 

OPEB Liabilities, Expense, Deferred Outflows ofResources, and Deferred Inflows of Resources. 
At December 31,2021, the District repol1ed a net OPEB liability of $95,244 for its proportionate 
share of the CERS net OPEB liability. The net OPEB liability was measured as of J~me 30, 2021, 
and the total OPEB liability nsed to calculate the net OPEB liability was determined by an 
actuarial valuation as of June 30,2020, rolled forward to June 30, 2021. At June 30, 2021, the 
District's proportion was .004975% for nonhazardous classified employees. 

For the year ended December 31, 2021, the District recognized OPEB expense of $4,489. At 
December 31, 2021, the District reported defetTed outflows of resources and deferred inflows of 
resources related to pensions from the following sources: 

Deferred Deferred 
Outflows Inflows 

of Resources of Resources 
Net difference between projected & actual earnings on 
pension plan investments $ 14,977 $ 28,437 

Changes of assumptions 25,251 89 
Net difference between projected and ·actual earnings on 
plan investments 4,799 19,698 

Changes in proportion and differences between employer 
contlibutions and prop0l1ionate share of contributions 7,217 34,599 

Contributions subsequent to the measurement date, 
including implicit subsidy 6,593 ­

.$Totals $ 58,837 82.823 

The $6,593 ofdefen-ed outflows of resources resulting from the District's contributions subsequent 
to the measurement date and the December 31, 2021 implicit subsidy will be recognized as a 
reduction of the net OPEB liability in the year ending December 31, 2022. 

Other amounts reported as deferred outflows ofresources and defen-ed inflows ofresources related 
to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows: 

Fiscal Year Ending 
June 30, 

Amortizationl 
(Accretion) 

2022 
2023 
2024 
2025 

$ (5,839) 
(8,090) 
(7,182) 
(9,468) 

$ (30,579) 
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Actuarial Assumptions The total OPEB liability, net OPEB liability, and sensitivity infOlmation as 
of June 30,2021, were based on an actuarial valuation date of June 30,2020. The total OPEB 
liability was rolled~forward from the valuation date (June 30, 2020) to the plan's fiscal year ending 
June 30, 2021, using the generally accepted actuarial principles. 

The following actuarial assumptions were used in perfOlming the actuarial valuation as of June 30, 
2021: 

Inflation 2.30% 

Payroll Growth Rate 2.0% eERS Non-hazardous 

Salary Increase 3.30% -10.30%, varies by service 

Investment Rate of Return 6.25% 

Healthcare Trend Rates 

Pre~6S Initial trend starting at 6.30% as January 1, 2023, and 
gradually decreasing to an ultimate trend rate of 4.05% over a 
period of 13 years. 

Post-65 Initial trend starting at 6.30% in 2023, then gradually 
decreasing to an ultimate trend rate of4.05% over a period of 
13 years. 

Mortality 

Pre-retiremcnt Pub~201 0 General Mortality table, for the Nonhazardous Plans, 
projected with the ultimate rates from the MP-2014 mortality 
improvement scale using a base year of20l0. 

Post-retirement (non,.disabled) System-specific mortality table based on mortality experience 
form 2013-2018, projected with the ultimate rates from MP­
2014 mortality improvement sale using a base year of 20 19. 

Pos~-retirement (disabled) Pub-20l0 Disabled M011ality table, with a 4-year set-forward 
for both male and female rates, projected with the ultimate 
rates from the MP-2014 mortality improvement scale using a 
base year of201O. 

The single discount rates used to calculate the total OPEB liability within each plan changed since 
the prior year. The assumed increase in future health care costs, or trend assumption, was 
reviewed during the June 30, 2020, valuation process and was updated to better reflect the plan's 
anticipated long-term healthcare costs. T~ere were no other material assumption changes. 

House Bill 1 passed during the 2019 Special Legislative Session allows certain' employers in the 
KERS Nonhazardous plan to elect to cease participating in the KERS Nonhaza,rdous Plan as of 
June 30, 2020, under different provisions than were previously established. Senate Bill 249 passed 
during the 2020 legislative session delayed the effective date of cessation for these provisions to 
June 30, 2021. Only one employer elected to cease pal1icipation under these, provisions and freeze 
benefit accruals for their current employees. As such, there is no material impact on the total 
OPEB liability due to this legislation. 

Senate Bill 249 passed during the 2020 legislative session cbanged the funding period for tile 
amortization of the unftmded liability to 30 years as of June 30, 2019. Gains and losses incurring 
in future years will be amortized over separate 20-year amortization bases. This change does not 
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impact the calculation of the Total OPEB Liability and only impacts the calculation of the 
contribution rates that were payable starting July 1, 2020. 

Senate Bill 169 passed during the 2021 legislative session and increased the disability benefits for 
certain qualifying members who become "totally and permanently disabled" in the line of duty or 
as a result of a duty~related disability. The total OPEB liability as of June 30, 2021, is determined 
using these updated benefit provisions. 

Additionally, House Bill 8 passed during the 2021 legislative session changed how employer 
contributions are allocated and collected from the participating employers in the KERS 
Nonhazardous Plan. This change does not impact the calculation of the total OPEB liability but 
does impact the allocation of required contributions amongst the participating employers. As a 
result of this legislation, there are several employers that will experience a relatively large change 
in proportionate share of the Collective OPEB Amounts in the KERS Nonhazardotls insurance 
plan from 2020 to 2021. Additional infonnatiol1 is provided in Section 1 of the GASB 75 KERS 
report. There were no other material plan provision cbanges, 

The target allocation and best estimates of arithmetic real rate ofretum for each major asset class 
is summarized in the table below. 

Target Long~Term Nominal 
Asset Class Allocation Rate of Return 
Growth 68.50% 

US Equity 21.75% 5.70%. 
Non US Equity 21.75% 6.35% 
Private Equity 10.00% 9.70% 
Specialty Credil:!High Yield 15.00% 2.80% 

Liquidity 11.50% 
Core Bonds 10.00% 0.00% 
Cash 1.50% (0.60)% 

Diversifying Strategies 20.00% 
Real Estate 10.00% 5.40% 
Opportunistic 0.00% N/A 
Real Return 10.00% 4.55% 

Total 100.00% 
Expected real return 5.00% 
Long-term inflation assumption 2.30% 

Discount Rate. The single discount rate of 5.20% for CERS nonhazardous plans were used to 
calculate the total OPEB liability as of June 30, 2021. The single discount rate is based on the 
expected rate of return on OPEB plan investments of 6.25%, and a municipal bond rate of 1.92%, 
as reported inFidelity Index's "20-Year Municipal GO AA Index" as of June 30: 2021. Based on 
the stated assumptions and the projection of cash flows as of each fiscal year ending, each plan's 
fiduciary net position and future contributions were projected to be sufficient to finance the future 
benefit payments of the current plan members. Therefore, the long-tenn expected rate of return on 
insurance plan investments was applied to all periods of the projected benefit payments paid from 
the plan. However, the cost associated with the implicit employer subsidy was not illcluded in the 
calculation of the plans actuarial determined contributions, and any cost associated with the 
implicit subsidy will not be paid out of the plan's trust. Therefore, the municipal bond rate was 
applied to filture expected benefit payments associated with the implicit subsidy. 

Implicit Subsidy. The' fully-insured premiums paid for Kentucky Employee's Health Plan are 
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blended rates based on the combined experience of the active and retired members. Because the 
average cost of providing health care benefits to retirees under age 65 is higher than the average 
cost of providing health care benefits to active employees, there is an implicit employer subsidy 
for non-Medicare eligible retirees. GASB Statement No. 75 requires that the liability associated 
with this implicit subsidy be included in the calculation of the Total OPEB Liability. The 
District's implicit subsidy for the year ended December, 31, 2021, was $3,134. 

Sensitivity of the District's proportionate share of the net OPEB liability to changes in the 
discount rate. The following presents the District's proportionate share of the net OPEB liability 
calculated using the discount rate of present, as well as what tbeplan's net position liability would 
be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage point lower (4.20%) or one 
percentage point higher (6.20%) than the current rate (5.20%): 

Current 

1% Discount 1% 


Decrease Rate Increase 

4.20% 5.20% 6.20% 


The District's proportionate share of 
the net OPEB liability $ 130,769 $ 95,244 $ 66,090 

Sensitivity of the net OPEB liability to changes in the healthcare coat trend rate, The following 
presents the District's proportionate share of the net OPEB . liability calculated using the current 
healthcare cost trend rates (see details in Actuarial Assumptions above), as well as, what the 
District's proportionate share of the net OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using 
healthcare cost trend rat~s that are one percentage point lower or one percentage point higher than 
the current rates. . 

Current 

Healthcare 


1% Cost Trend 1% 

Decrease Rate Increase 


The District's proportionate share of 
the net OPEB liability $ 68,564 $ 95,244 $ 127,447 

Payables to the OPEB plan. At December 31, 2021, the financial statements include $828 in 
contractually required employee OPEB contributions primarily for the month ended Decemher 31. 
2021. The obligation was paid within prescribed time limits. 

8. COMMITMENTS 
Contracts for Writer SuPPly 
The District entered into contracts with the City of Eddyville, the City of Kuttawa, the City ·of 
Princeton, and the Crittenden-Livingston Water District which states that the Cities and Water 
District will provide water to the District. 
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9. CONTINGENCIES 
The District participates in federal and state assisted grant programs for construction of water 
lines. These programs are subject to review by grantors or their representatives. As ofDecember 
31,2021, there have been no material questioned or disallowed costs as a result of grant audits. As 
construction is completed, amounts due from grant funds are recognized and are recorded as 
revenue. 

10. 	 PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION REGULATIONS 
The District is required to file with the Public Service Commission (PSC) a report of its gross 
earnings or receipts derived from intra-state business for the preceding calendar year. The District 
has satisfied this requirement. The Disb'jct has also filed the 2021 annual PSC RepOlt as required. 
Further, the PSC requires that all customer deposit refunds be paid with interest. This requirement 
has been fulfilled. 

11. 	 ECONOMIC DEPENDENCIES 
The majority of the District's revenue consists of charges for water-related services to customers in 
Lyon County, Kentucky. For the year ended December 31, 2021. the revenues from these sources 
totaled $1,313,827. The District also receives monies from the United States Department of 
Agriculture and the Ke~tucky Infrastructure Authority whenever funds are available. 

12. 	 COMPENSATED ABSENCES 
The District gi:ants employees vacation time based on years of service. Full-time employee are 
entitled to vacation pay according to the following schedule: 

1 to 5 years 12 days 
6+ years . 15.days 

Employees are allowed to canyforward 80 hours of vacation time. Upon termination of 
employment, an employee will be paid for all unused vacation leave. The liability for unused 
vacation time at December 31. 2021 was $3,239. 

The District's policy on sick pay states that employees will be granted 1/2 sick day per month. 
Employees are allowed to carryforward 240 hours of sick time. Sick leave is forfeited upon 
termination ofemployment. The liability for unused sick time at December 31,2021 was $1,000. 

13. 	 LITIGATION 
The District is not aware of any pending or. threatened litigation in which it is involved which 
would have a material effect on these finanCial statements. 
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Variance 
with 

Final Budget 
Budgeted Amounts Positive 

Revenues Original Final Actual (Negative} 

Water revenues $ 1,450,000 $ 1,450,000 $ 1,313,827 $ (l36,173) 
Other 850 850 (850) 

Total Operating Revenues 1,450,850 1,450,850 1,313,827 (137,023) 

Operating Expenses 
Water expenses 965,700 965,700 896,861 68,839 
Depreciation 342,000 ?42,000 334,418 7,582 
Wastewater expenses 20,500 20,500 20,917 (417) 
Payroll and other taxes 12~000 121000 101645 11355 

Total Operating Expenses 113401200 113402200 1~621841 771359 

Operating Income (Loss) 110,650 110,650 50/;)86 (59,664) 

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) 
Investment income 3,500 3,500 218 (3,282) 
Interest on debt (1151000) (115,000) (101 1226) 13,774 

Total Nonoperating Revenue (Expenses) (IIL500) (111.500) (101,008) 10.492 

Net Income before Capital Contributions (850) (850) (50,022) (49,172) 

Capital Contributions 
Tap-on fees 101500 10,500 101800 300 

Total Capital Contributions 101500 10:500 101800 300 

Change in Net Position $ 9,650 $ 9,650 (39,222) $ . (48,872) 

Net Position-Beginning of Year 3,254.145 

Net Position-End of Year $ 312141923 
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Last Ten Measurement Dates (1) 


District's share ofthe 
District's net pension.1iability Plan fiduciary net 

. District's proportion proportionate share of (asset) as a percentage position as a 
ofthe net pension the net pension District's covered of its covered percentage of the total 

YearBnded liability liability (asset} emQ10ree Qayroll emQloyee Qayroll Qension liability (2) 

CERS Nonlut;,ardous 

2021 0.004977% $317,323 $123,352· 257.25% 57.33% 

2020 0.006202% $475,688 $143,895 330.58% 47.81% 

2019 0.007366% $518,054 $175,603 295.01% 50.45% 

2018 0.006546% $398,671 $181,770 219.33% 53.54% 

2017 0.006997% $409,556 $158,492 258.41% 53.30% 

2016 0.00639% $314,713 $175,888 178.92% 55.50% 

2015 0.00551% $237,005 $139,779 169.55% 59.97% 

2014 0.005572% $180,777 $150,398 169.55% 66.80% 

Note to Schedule: 

(1) The amounts presented were determined as of the measurement date June 30. District payroll is reported for its' covered employees on a calendar year 
ending December 31. 

(2) This will be the same percentage for all participant employers in the CERS plan. 

Schedule is intended to show information for 10 years. Additional years of supplemental infonnation will be provided as this information becomes 
available. 
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Contractually required 
Year Ended contribution 

eEBSNonhazardous 

2021 $25,024 

2020 $27,697 

2019 $31,073 

2018 $27,925 

2017 $28,030 

2016 $28,511 

2015 $22,637 

2014 $22,229 

Note to Schedule: 

Lyon County Water District 

. Schedule of Pension Contributions 

For the Years Ended December 31 


Last Ten Years (1) 


Contributions relative 
to contractually 

required contribution 

$25,024 

527,697· 

$31,073 

$27,925 

$28,030 

$28,511 

$22,637 

$22,229 

Contribution District's covered 
deficiency (excess) employee payroll 

$ - $123,352 

$ - $143,895 

$ - $175,603 

$ - $181,770 

$ - $158,492 

$ - $175,888 

$ - $139,779 

$ - $150,398 

Contributions as a 
percentage ofcovered 

employee payroll 

19.30% / 21.17% 

19.30% / 19.30% 

16.22% /19.30% 

14.48% /1622% 

13.95% / 14.48% 

12.42% / 13.95% 

12.75%/12.42% 

13.74% / 12.75% 

(1) Schedule is intended to show iDfonnation for 10 years. Additional years of supplemental infonnation will be provided as this information becomes 
available. 

Contractually required employer contributions exclude the portion ofcontributions paid to CERS but allocated to the msurnnce fund ofeERS. The above 
contributions only include those allocated directly to the CERS pension fund. 
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Note A - Changes 0/Assuillptions: 

The following changes were made by the Kentucky Legislature and reflected in the valuation performed as of 

June 30, listed below: 


2015: 

The assumed investment rate of return was decreased from 7.75% to 7.50%. 

The assumed rate of inflation was reduced from 3.50% to 3.25%. 

The assumed rate ofwage inflation was reduced from 1.00% to 0.75%. 

Payroll growth assumption was reduced from 4.50% to 4.00%. 

The mortality table used for active members is RP-2000 Combined Mortality Table projected with Scale BB 

to 2013 (multiplied by 50% for males and 30% for females). 


For healthy retired members and beneficiaries, the mortality table used is the RP-2000 Combined Mortality 

Table projected with Scale BB to 2013 (set back 1 year for females). For disabled members, the RP-2000 

Combined Disabled Mortality Table projected with Scale BB to 2013 (set back 4 years for males) is used for 

the period after disability retirement. There is some margin in the current mortality tables for possible future 

improvement in mortality rates and that margin will be reviewed again when the next experience investigation 

is conducted. 


The assumed rates of Retirement, Withdrawal, and Disability were updated to more accurately reflect 

experience. 


2017: 

The actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2017, was performed by Gabriel Roeder Smith. Subsequent to the 

actuarial valuation date (June 30, 2016), but prior to the measurement date the KRS Board of Trustees 

reviewed investment trends, inflation, and payroll growth historical trends. Based on this review the Board 

adopted the following updated actuarial assun1ptions which were used in perfonning the actuarial valuation as 

of June 30, 2017, which were also used to determine the Total Pension Liability and Net Pension Liability as 

of June 30, 2017. 

Inflation 
Salary increases 
Investment rate of return 

2.30% 
3.{)5%, average 
6.25%, net ofpension plan investment expense including inflation 

2018: 
There have been no changes in actuarial assumption since June 30, 2017. 


2019: 

Payroll growth rate was reduced to 2.00% from 4.00%. 

The assumed salary increases were increased to 3.30% to ·11.55%, from 3.05% to 18.55%. ; 


2020: 

There have been no changes in actuarial assumptions since June 30, 2019. 


2021: 

The assmned salary increases were decreased to 3.30% to 10.30%, from 3.30% to 11.55%. 
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Note B - Method and ussumptio/lS "sed itl calculations ofactuarialty determined contribution 
The total pension liability, net pension liability, and sensitivity information as of J1me 30, 2021, were based 
on an actuarial valuation date of JtIDe 30, 2020. The total pension liability was rolled forward from the 
valuation date of June 30, 2020, to the plan's fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, using the generally accepted 
actuarial principles. The following actuarial methods and assumptiollS used to calculate the required 
contributions are below. 

Valuation date June 30, 2019 
Experience study July 1, 2013 - June 30, 2018 
Actual cost method Entry age nonna! 
Amortization method Level percent of pay 
Amortization period 30-year closed period at June 30, 2019. Gains/losses incurring after 

2019 will be amortized over separate closed 20-year amortization 
bases. 

Payroll growth rate 2.00% 
Asset valuation method 20% of the difference between the market value of assets and the 

expected actuarial value of assets is recognized 
Inflation 2.30% 
Salary increases 3.30% to 10.30%, varies by service for eERS 
Investment Rate of Return 6.25% 
Mortality System-specific mortality table based on mortality experience from 

2013-2018, projected with the ultimate rates from MP·2014 mortality 
improvement scale using a base year of2019. 

Phase-In provision Board certified rate is phased into the actuarially determined rate ill 
accordance with HB362 enacted in 2018. 

Note C - Changes in beniifits: 
2009: A new benefit tier for members who first participate on or after September 1, 2008, was introduced 
which included the following changes: 

1. Tiered structure for benefit accrual rates. 
2. New retirement eligibility requirements. 
3. Different rulcs for the computation offinal average compensation. 

2014: A cash balance plan was introduced for members whose participation date is on or after January 1, 
2014. 

2018: House Bill 185 was enacted, which updated benefit provisions for active members who die in the line 
of duty. 

2019: House Bill I passed during the 2019 legislative session and allowed certain agencies in the KERS 
Nonhazardous plan to elect to cease participating in the fund as of June 30, 2020, under different provisions 
than were previously established. 

2020: Senate Bill 249 passed dllfing the 2020 legislative session delayed the effective date of cessation for 
these provisions to June 30, 2021. . 

2021: Senate Bill 169 passed dllfing 2021 legislative session increased the disability benefits for certain 
qualifying members who become "total and permanently disabled" in the line of duty or as a result of a duty~ 
related disability. 

House Bill 8 passed during the 2021 legislative session changed how employer contributions are allocated 
and collected from the participating employer in the KERS Nonhazardous plan. 
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Schedule of the Proportionate Share of the Net OPEB Liability 


For the Years Ended December 31 

Last Ten Measurement Dates (1) 


District's share ofthe 
District's net OPEB liability Plan fiduciary net 

Insnicfsproponion
ofthe net OPEB 

proportionate share of 
the net OPEB liability· District's covered 

(asset) as a percentage 
ofits covered 

position as a 
percentage of'the total 

Year Ended liability (asset) employee payroll employee payroll OPEB liability (2) 

CERS Nonhazardous 

2021 0.004975% $ 95,244 $123,352 77.21% 62.91% 

2020 0.006200% $149,711 $143,895 104.04% 51.67% 

2019 0.007364% $123,859 $175,603 70.53% 60.44% 

2018 0.006546% $116,223 $181,770 63.94% 57.62% 

2017 0.006997% $140,664 $158,492 88.75% 52.40% 

Note to Schedule: 

(1) The amounts presented were determined as ofthe measurement date June 30. District payroll is reported for its' covered employees on calendar years 
ending December 31. . 

(2) This will be the same for all participant employers in the CERS plan. 

Schedule is intended to-show information for 10 years. Additional years of supplemental infonnation will be provided as this information becomes 
available. 
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Lyon County Water District 

Schedule of OPED Contributions 


For the Years Ended December 31 

Last Ten Years (1) 


Contributions relative Contributions as .a 
Contractually required to contractually Contribution District's covered percentage ofcovered 

Year Ended contribution reguired contribution deficiency (excess} eml!loxee :eayroll eml!loxee :ea:EQll 

CERS NOllhazardous 

2021 $6,467 $6,467 $ - $123,352 4.76% 15.78% 

2020 $6,924 $6,924 $ - $143,895 4.76% 14.76% 

2019. $8,748 $8,748 $ - $ 175,603 5.26% 14.76% 

2018 $9,046 $9,046 $ -' $181,770 4.70% I 5.26% 

2017 $9,311 $9,311 $ - $158,492 4.73% 14.70% 

Note to Schedule: 

Contributions in relation to statutorily required OPEB contributions are the contributions an employer actually made to the OPEB Plan, as distinct from the 
statutorily required contributions. 

Contractually required employer contributions exclude the portion of contributions paid to CERS but allocated to the pension fund of CERS. The above 
contributions only include those allocated directly to the CERS insurance fund. 

(1) Schedule is intended to show information for 10 years. Additional years of supplemental information will be provided as this information becomes 
available. 
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Lyon County Water District 

Schedule of Changes in Benefits and Assumptions OPEB 


For the Year Ended December 31, 2021 


Note A ~ Challges ofAssumptioIJs: 
2017: 

The actuarial valuation was performed as of June 30, 2016. Gabriel Roeder Smith Retirement Consulting 

rolled forward from the valuation date to the plan's fiscal year end of June 30, 20 [7 using generally accepted 

actuarial principles. Subsequent to the actuarial valuation date (June 30, 2016), but prior to the measurement 

date the KRS Board of Tmstees reviewed investment trends, inflation, and payroll growth historical trends. 

Based on this review the Board adopted tlle following updated actuarial assumptions which were used ill 

performing the actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2017, which were also used to determine the Total Pension 

LiabiHty and Net Pension Liability as of June 30, 2017. Specifically, a 2.30% price inflation assumption and 

an assumed rate of return of 6.25%. 


2018: 

There have been no changes in aetuarial assumptions 'since JU11e 30, 2017. 


2019: 

The payroll growth rate was reduced to 2.0% from 4.0%. 

The inflation rate was reduced to 2.30% from 3.25%. 

The investment rate of return was redueed to 6.25% from 7.50%. 


2020: 

There have been no cbangesjn actuarial assumptions since Jlme 30, 20l9. 


2021: 

Salary increases were redu~ed to 3.30% to 10.30% from 3.30% to 11.55%. 


Note B ~ Method and asslIIIJptions IIsed hi calclliations ofactuarially determined cOIltrlb,ftioIlS. 
The total OPBB liability, net OPEB liability, and sensitivity information as of June 30, 2021, were based on 
an actuarial valuation date 'of June 30, 2020. The total OPEB liability was rolled forward from the valuation 
date of June 30, 2020 to the plan's fiscal year ending June 30, 2021 using generally accepted actuarial 
principles. Tne actuarial methods and assumptions used to calculate the required contributions are below. 

Valuation date June 30,2019 
Experience study July 1, 2013 ~ June 30, 2018 
Actual cost method Entry age normal 
Amortization method Level percent of pay 
Amortization period 30-year closed period at June 30, 2019. Gains/losses incurring after 

2019 will be amortized over separate closed 20-year amortization 
bases. 

Asset valuation method 	 20% of the difference between the market value ,of assets and the 
expected actuarial value of assets is recognized 

Inflation 2.30% 
Salary increases 3.30% to 10.30%, varies by service for CRRS 
Payroll growth rate 2.00% 
Investment Return 6.25% 
Healthc31'e Trend Rates 
Pre-65 Initial trend starting at 5.50% nt January 1, 2021, then gradually 

decreasing to an ultimate trend rate of 4.05% over a period of 14 
years. 

Post-65 	 Initial trend starting at 5.50010 at January 1, 2021, then gradually 
decreasing to. an ultimate trend rate of 4.05% over a period of 14 
years. 

Mortality 	 System-specific mortality table based on mortality experience fi'om 
2013-2018, projected with the ultimate rates from MP-2014 mortality 
improvement scale using a base year of 2019. . 
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[,yon County Water District 

Schedule of Changes in Benefits and Assumptions OPEB 


For the Year Ended December 31, 2021 


Phase-In provision Board certified rate is phased into the actuariaUy determined rate in 
accordance with HB362 enacted in 2018. 

Note.~ C - Changes ofBtmefits: 

2019: House Bill 1 passed during the 2019 legislative session and allowed certain agencies in the KERS 
Nonhazardous plan to elect to cease participating in the fund as of June 30, 2020, under different provisions 
than were previously established. 

2020: Senate Bill 249 passed during the 2020 legislative session delayed the effective date of cessation for 
these provisions to June 30, 2021. 

2021: Senate Bill 249 passed during the 2020 legislative session changed the funding period for the 
amortization of the unfunded liability to 30 years as of June 30, 2019. Gains and losses incurring in future 
years will be amortized over separate 20-year amortization bases. 

Senate Bill 169 passed during 2021 legislative session increased the disability benefits for certain qualifYing 
members who become "total and. permanently disabled" in the line of duty or as a result of a duty-related 
disability. 

House Bill 8 passed during the 2021 legislative session ohanged how employer contributions are aUocated 
and collected from the participating employer in the KERS Nonhazardous plan. 
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JESSICA K. DANIEL, CPA PSC 
CERTIFIED PUBlJC ACCOUN"rANT 

'. & ..... , •. $, ...j,. 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL 
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT 

OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH 
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

To the Board ofCommissioners 
Lyon County Water District 
Kuttawa, Kentucky 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards 
issues by the Comptroller General of the United States, the fmancial statements of the Lyon County 
Water District, as of and for the year ended December 31, 2021 and the related notes to the financial 
statements, which collectively comprise the Lyon County Water District's basic financial statements, and 
have issued our report thereon dated July 25, 2022. . 

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements. we considered the Lyon County Water 
District's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial 
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the District's internal 
controL Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the District's internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functiorts, to prevent, or 
detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is· a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material 
misstatement of the entity's fmaneial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a 
timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control 
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged 
with governance. . I 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this 
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may 
exist that have not been identified. Given these limitations, during out audit we did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. We did identify certain 
deficiencies in internal control, described ill the accompanying schedule of fmdings and questioned costs 
that we consider to he significant deficiencies. (2021-1). . 

".;bJ)&i.!.l4!L~"Q,,3I1)2.U&t.l ..J ,,,.LH_ ,~.tbIiJ.,S ""~.' i.1j~ >!.,J"HtJ, "'.",.1, . 
270-3004114 OFFicer40 COMMERCE ST. 

270·388-2363 FAXPO Box 909 

EODWILLE. KY 42.035 
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Report on Compliance and Other Matters 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Lyon County Water District's financial 
statements are free ofmaterial misstatement, ...ye performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions 
of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and 
material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on 
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express 
such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances ofnoncompliance that are required to be 
reported under GovernmentAuditing Standards. 

Lyon County Water District's Response to Findings 
Lyon County Water Districes response to findings identified in our audit described in the accompanying 
schedule of findings and responses. The District's response was not subjected to the auditing procedures 
applied in the audit of the financial statements, and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it. 

Purpose of this Report 
The purpose of this repOlt is solely to describe the scope ofour testing of internal control and compliance 
and the results of that testing. and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal 
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity's internal control and compliance. 
Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

Eddyville, Kentuc1cy 
July 25, 2022 

·41· 



Lyon County Water District 

Schedule ofFindings and Responses 


For The Year Ended December 31, 2021 


2021"1 Segregation of Duties 

Condition 

There is an absence ofappropriate segregation ofduties consistent with appropriate control objectives. 


Criteria 

A prudent control environment requires various functions of internal control be allocated among various 

employees. 


Effect 

Although no instances were noted, lack ofsegregation ofduties can create situations where assets are not 

properly safeguarded and errors and ilTegularities may go undetected. 


Cause 

Lack ofpersonne1. 


Recommendation 

We recommend that management review its financial operation for opportunities to separate 

incompatible functions. Where segregation of duties cannot be achieved due to the size of the staff, 

management should maintain its awareness of the weakness and compensate with other controls. 


Response . 

We agree with the finding and have put in place certain compensating controls to help alleviate exposure. 

A third party accounting firm has been contracted to provide office staff, bookkeeping, payroll, and 

preparing monthly reports for Board review. 
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Lyon County Water District 

Schedule of PlioI' Year Findings and Responses 


For The Year Ended December 31,2020 


2020-1 Segregation of Duties 

Condition 

There is an absence ofappropriate segregation of duties consistent with appropriate control objectives. 


Criteria 

A prudent control environment requires various functions of internal control be allocated among various 

employees. 


Effect 

Although no instances were noted, lack ofsegregation ofduties can create situations where assets are not 

properly safeguarded and errors and irregularities may go undetected. 


Cause 

Lack ofpersonnel. 


Recommendation 

We recommend that management review its fmaneial operation for opportunities to separate 

incompatible functions. Where segregation of duties cannot be achieved due to the size of the staff, 

management should maintain its awareness of the weakness and compensate with other controls .. 


Response 

We agree with the finding and have put in place certain compensating controls to help alleviate exposure. 

A third party accounting firm has been contracted to provide office staff, bookkeeping, payroll, and 

preparing monthly reports for Board review. 
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Year End: December 31, 2021 I Prepared by Reviewed by I 8-2 
Adjusting journal entries 
Date: 1/112021 To 12131/2021 JKD JKO 

7/22/2022 712512022 

Reference Annotation Debit Credit Recurrence MisstatementNumber Date Type Name AecountNo 

AJE01 

AJE01 
AJE01 

AJE01 

12131J2021 
12131/2021 
1213112021 
1213112021 

N 
N 
N 
N 

Deferred Outflows - Pension 
Net Pension Liability 

Deferred Inflows - Pension 
Pension Contra 

1900 

2700 
2900 

5031 

158,365.00 

47,571.00 

80,168.00 

30,626.00 

GASB 55 adjustment 

AJE02 

AJE02 
AJE02 
AJE02 

1213112021 

12131/2021 
1213112021 

12131/2021 

N 
N 
N 
N 

Deferred OU1tlows • OPEB 

Net OPEB Uabillly 
Deferred Inflows· OPES 
Pension Contra 

1901 

2701 
2901 
5031 

54,467.00 

17,435.00 

33,414.00 

3,618.00 

GASB 75 adjustment 

AJE03 
AJE03 

AJE03 

AJE03 

12131/2021 
12131J2021 
12131/2021 
1213112021 

N 
N 
N 

N 

Accrued Interest 
Current Portion L T Debt 
Long Tem1 Debt - RID 
Interest Expense 

2300 
2500 
2621 
5800 

20,516.60 
48,500.00 

48,500.00 
20,516.60 

To adjust current portion ofdebt 

- January 2022 payrnoot was made in December 2021. 

AJE 04 1213112021 N Retirement Payable 2310 3,275.92 
AJE 04 12131/2021 N Employee Pension Expense 5000 3,275.92 

Adjust retirement payable 

285.124.52 285.124.52 

Net Income (Loss) (39.221.15) 
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Year End: December 31,2021 
Trial balance 

B·1
Prepared by Reviewed by 

JKD JKD 
7/22/2022 7/25/2022

: 

Account Prelim AdJ's Rep Ann. Rep 12120 Amount Chg %Chg 

105 Cash 194,955.50 0.00 194,955.50 241,099.75 (46.144.25) (19) 
1000 Cash ~Operatlng 19,911.18 0.00 19,911.18 1-0 64,863.61 (44,952.43) (69) 

1002 Cash - Revenue 28,518.78 0.00 28,518.78 1-0 33,079.84 (4,561.06) (14) 

1003 Cash - Project #2 73,141.05 0.00 73,141.05 1-0 72,941.05 200.00 0 

1005 Cash· Lyon Co Loan Fund 7,240.30 0.00 7,240.30 1-0 . 7,240.30 0.00 0 

1007 Cash - Sewer Operation 66,144.19 0.00 66,144.19 1-0 62,974.95 3,169.24 5 

110 Accounts recivable 120,235.37 0.00 120,235.37 121,166.82 (931.45) (1 ) 

1100 Customer ReceIvables 120,235.37 0.00 120,235.37 2-1 121,166.82 (931.45) (1 ) 

115 Unbllled revenue 81,935.71 0.00 81,935.71 81,487.93 447.78 1 

1175 Unbllled Revenue 81,935.71 0.00 81,935.71 2-2 81,487.93 447.78 1 

125 Prepayments 15,641.10 0.00 15,641.10 16.971.33 (1,330.23) (8) 
·1300 Prepaid Expenses 15,641.19 0.00 15,641.19 3-2 16.971.42 (1.330.23 ) (8) 

1350 Prepaid KIA Principal (O.OS) 0.00 (0.09) (0.09 ) 0.00 0 

130 Inventory 32,930.05 0.00 32,930.05 25,390.14 7,539.91 30 

1200 Inventory 32,930.05 0.00 32,930.05 5-1 25,390.14 7,539.91 30 

135 Restricted Assets· Cash 292,042.14 0.00 292,042.14 285,904.22 6,137.92 2 
1001 Cash - Depreciation 163,910.01 0.00 163,910.01 1-0 160.288.98 . 3,621.03 2 

1006 Cash - KIA Loan Repayment Fd 4,796.80 0.00 4,796.80 1-0 4,796.80 0.00 0 

1008 Regions ­ Sinking Fund 72,139.89 0.00 72,139.89 1-0 68,095.63 4,044.26 6 
1009 Revenue Bond & Int Sinking Fd 51,195.44 0.00 51,195.44 1-0 52,722.81 (1,527.37) (3) 

136 Customer Deposit Cash 560.00 0.00 560.00 560.00 0.00 0 

1850 Deposits 560.00 0.00 560.00 1 660.00 0.00 0 

145 Capital Assets 7,618,454.55 0.00 7,618,454.55 7,851,578.13 (233,123.58 ) (3) 

145.100 Land 121,772.32 0.00 121,772.32 121,772.32 0.00 0 

1700 Land 121.772.32 0.00 ,121,772.32 4-1 121,772.32 0.00 0 

145.200 Construction In Progress 43,417.40 0.00 43,477.40 43.477.40 0.00 0 

1795 Construction in Process 9,081.40 0.00 9.081.40 4-1 9,081.40 0.00 0 

1796 Construction in Process· RD 29,980.00 0.00 29,980.00 4-1 29,980.00 0.00 0 

1797 Construction in Progress Sewer 4,416.00 0.00 4,416.00 4-1 4,416.00 0.00 0 

145.300 Plants and Facilities 12,687,380.26 0.00 12,687,380.26 12,652,563.58 34,816.68 0 

1720 DistribUtion Line #1 2,635.028.77 0.00 2,635,028.77 4-1 2,600,212.09 34.816.68 1 

1730 Distribution Une #2 8,563,709.92 0.00 8,563.709.92 4-1 6,663,709.92 0.00 0 

1740 Lake Barkley Line 164,209.83 0.00 164,209.83 4-1 164,209.83 0.00 0 

1750 Water Tank 422,706.87 0.00 422,706.87 4-~ 422,706.87 0.00 0 

1780 Improvements 34,000.00 0.00 34,000.00 4-1 34,000.00 0.00 0 
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Year End: December 31, 2021 B·1·1 
Trial balance 

Prepared by Reviewed by 

JI<D JKD 

7/22/2022 7/25/2022 

Account 	 Prelim Adj's Rep Ann. Rep 12/20 Amount Chg %Chg 

1790 Sewer Line 

145.400 	Buildings 

1760 Building 

145.500 	Vehicles and Equipment 

1710 Equipment 

1770 Vehloles 

145.650 	Accumulated Depreciation 

1799 Accumulated Depreciation 

170 Deferred Outflows 

1900 Deferred Outflows" Pension 
1901 Deferred Outflows MOPES 

205 Trade Accounts Payable 

2000 Accounts Payable 

213 Payroll Liabilities 

2200 Federal Wittholding 

'2201 FICAWrthholding 

2202 Kentucky Withholding 

2203 Payroll liabilities 

215 Accrued liabilities 

2100 Sales Tax Payable 

2110 School Tax Payable 

2305 Accrued Payroll 

2310 Retirement Payable 

2315 AFLAC Payable 

2320 Acorued Vacation 

220 Accrued interest on debt 


2300 Accrued Interest 


225 Customers' deposits 


2400 Customer Deposits 


235 Long-term debt due in one year 

2500 Current Portion l T Debt 

240 Long·term debt due after one ye~ 

2610 Long-Term Debt Bonds 

2620 Long Term Debt· KIA 

867.724.87 

73,976.27 
73,976.27 

449,376.27 
307,247.10 

142,129.17 

(5.757,527.97) 
(5,757,527.97) 

162,812.33 

86.540.07 
76,272.26 

(71.565.17) 
(71,565.17) 

(3,55U6) 
(835.21 ) 

(1,126.32) 
(559.20) 

(1,030.53) 

(11.515.05) 
(281.31 ) 

(3,493.42) 
(2.634.73) 

(668.56 ) 
(197.82) 

(4,239.21 ) 

(38,135.07) 
(38, 135.07) 

(18,350.00 ) 

(18,a-50.DO) 

(186.663.32 ) 
(186,663.32 ) 

(4,258,119.31 ) 

(930,000.00 ) 
(1,616,722.31 ) 

0.00 

0.00 
0.00 

0.00 
0.00 
0.00 

0.00 
0.00 

(65,006.00) 

(47.571.00 ) 
(17,435.00) 

0.00 
0.00 

0.00 
0.00 

0.00 
0.00 

0.00 

(3,275.92) 
0.00 
0.00 
0.00 

(3,275.92) 
0.00 
0.00 

20,516.60 
20,516.60 

0.00 
0.00 

48,500.00 
48,500.00 

(48.500.00) 
0.00 
0.00 

867,724.87 4-1 

73,976.27 

n,976.V 4-1 

449.376.27 
307,247.10 4-1 
142,129.17 4~1 

(5,757,527.97) 
(5,757.527.97)4-1 

97,806.33 
38,969.07 6-9 
58.837.26 6-9 

(71.565.17) 
(71.565.17) 6-1 

(3,551.26) 
(835.21) 6-8 

(1,126.32)6-8 
(559.20)6-7 

(1,030.53) 6-8 

(14,790.97) 
(281.31 )6-6 

(3.493.42) 6-5 
(2,634.73) 6-3 
(3,944.48)6-10 

(197.82) 

(4,239.21 )6-3 

(17,618.47 ) 
(17,618.47)7-1 

(18,350.00 ) 

(18,350.00) 6-4 

(138,163.32) 
(138,163.32)7-1 

(4,306.619.31 ) 
(930,000.00 )7-1 

(1,616,722.31 )7-1 

867,72.4.87 0.00 (J 

73,976.27 0.00 0 

73,976.27 0.00 0 

382,898.21 66,478.06 17 
295,769.04 11.478.06 4 

87,129.17 55.000.00 63 

(5,423,109.65) (334,418.32 ) 6 
(5,423,109.65 ) (334,418.32 ) 6 

157,392.69 (59,586.36) (38) 
82,192.65 (43,223.58) (53) 
75,200.04 (16,362.78) (22) 

(61,171.32) (10,393.85) 17 
(61,171.32) (10.393.85 ) 17 

(2.731.97) (819.29) 30 
(719.00) (116.21) 16 
(791.04 ) (335.28) 42 
(430.89) (128.31) 30 
(791.04) (239.49) 30 

(10,003.64 ) (4;787.33) 48 
(279.36) (1.95) , 1 

(2.885.56) (607.86) 21 
(2,683.28) 48.55 (2 ) 

(566.42) (3,378.06) 596 
(197.82) 0.00 0 

'(3,391.20) (848.01) 25 

(38,135.07) 20,516.60 (54) 
':(38,135,07 ) 20,516.60 (54 ) 

(19,100.00 ) 750.00 (4) 

(19,100.00) 750.00 (4 ) 

(178,426.15) 40,262.83 (23) 
(178,426.15) 40.262.83 (23) 

(4,447,885.62 ) 141,266.31 (3) 
(980,000.00 ) 60,000.00 (5) 

(1,704,885.62 ) 88,163.31 (5) 
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Year End: December 31, 2021 Prepared by Reviewed by 8-1-2 
Trial balance 

JKD JKD 

7/22/2022 7/2512022 

Account Prelim Adj's Rep Ann. Rep 12/20 Amount Chg %Chg 

2621 long Term Debt - RID 

2622 Farmers Bank - Dodge Ram 


245 Net Pension Liability 
2700 Net PensIon liability 
2701 Net OPEB Uability 

270 Deferred Inflows 
2630 Premium on RefInance 
2900 Deferred Inflows - Pension 
2901 Deferred Inflows - OPEB 

305 Invested In capital assets, net of 
3100 Invested Net of Related Debt 

310 Restricted for debt service 
3010 Restricted for Debt Service 

315 Unrestricted 
3000 Unrestricted Net Position 

405 Water Revenues 
4000 Resldentlal Water Sales 
4010 Commercial Water Sales 
4020 Flat Rata Revenues - General Re 
4030 Flat Rate Revenues - General Co 
4900 Returns and Allowances 

410 Other 

, 4200 Miscellaneous Charges 


415 Capital Contributions 

4550 Contributed Capital 


420 Investment Income 


4500 Interest Income 


501 Water Expenses 

5000 Salarles 

5001 Salaries Contra 

5010 Employee Dental Insurance 

5020 Employee Health Insurance 

6021 Health Contra 

5030 Employee Pension Expense 

5031 Pension Contra 


(1,666,000.00) 

(45,397.00 ) 

(625,399.00 ) 

(475,688.00 ) 

(149.711.00 ) 

(142.829.49) 
(32,752.75 ) 
(60,667.40 ) 
(49,409.34 ) 

(3,275,818.29 ) 

(3,275.818.29 ) 

(201,828.00 ) 
(201,828.00 ) 

223,501.38 

223,601.38 

(1,313,827.37 ) 
(1.220,689.03 ) 

(71,974.83 ) 
(13,704.97) 

(9,978.04) 
2,719.50 

0.00 

0.00 

(10,800~00) 

(10,800.00 ) 

(217.85) 
(217.85) 

927,828.63 
140,595.98 

(48.55) 

667.96 

15,432.10 
0.00 

26.139.17 
0.00 

(48,500.00 ) 

0.00 

212,832.00 
158,365.00 

54,467.00 

(113,582.00 ) 
0.00 

(80,168.00 ) 
(33.414.00 ) 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 
0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 
0.00 

0.00 
0.00 

0.00 
0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 
0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

(30,968.08 ) 
0.00 

0.00 
0.00 

0.00 
0.00 

3,275.92 
(34,244.00 ) 

(1,714,500.00 )7-1 

(45,397.00)7-l 

(412,567.00) 

(317,323.00)6-9 

(95,244.00) 6-9 

(256.411.49 ) 
(32,752.75)7-l 

(140,835.40}6-9 
(62,823.34) 6-9 

(3,275,818.29 ) 

(3,275,818.29 ) 

(201,828.00 ) 

(201,828.00 ) 


223,501.38 


223,601.38 


(1,313,827.37) 
(1,220,889.03) 1 0-01 

(71,974.83)10-01 
(13,704.97)10-0l 
(9,978.04)10~Ol 

2,719.50 

0.00 

0.00 

(10,800.00) 

(10,600.00) 

(217.85) 
(217.85) 

896,860.55 
140,595.98 

(48.55) 

667.96 
15,432.10 

0.00 
29,415.09 

(34,244.00 ) 

(1,763.000.00 ) 46,500.00 (3) 
0.00 (45,397.00 ) 0 

(625,399.00 ) 212,832.00 (34) 
(475,688.00 ) 158,365.00 (33) 

(149,711.00 ) 54.467.00 (36) 

(144,553.33 ) (111,858.16) 77 
(34,476.59 ) 1.723.84 (5) 
(60,557.40 ) (80,168.00) 132 
(49.409.34 ) (33,414.00 ) 68 

(3,275,818.29 ) 0.00 0 

(3,275,618.29 ) 0.00 0 

(201,628.00) 0.00 0 
(201,828.00 ) 0.00 Q 

16,381.39 207,119.991264 
16,381.39 207,119.991264 

(1,264,850.15) (48,977.22) 
(1,160,087.11 ) (60,801.92 ) "5 

(62,442.19 ) 10,467.36 {13) 
(13.344.05 ) (360.92) 3 
(12.026.81 ) 2,048.77 (17) 

3.050.01 (330.51 ) (11) 

(610.00) 610.00 (1 00) 
(610.00) 610.00 (100) 

(7,200.00) (3,600.00) 50 
(7.200.00) (3,600.00) 50 

(606.04) 388.19 (64) 
(606.04) 368.19 (64) 

1,002,000.60 (105,140.05) (10) 
159,640.92 (19,044.94) (12) 

621.48 {670.03 X1 08) 
602.08 65.88 11 

21,192.12 (5.760.02) (27) 
6,045.00 (6,045.00 X1 GO) 

69,140.47 (39.725.38) (57) 
0.00 (34,244.00) .0 
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Year End: December 31, 2021 Prepared by Reviewed by 1 B·1~3 
Trial balance 

.:nm JKD 

7/22/2022 7/25/2022 
I 

Account 	 Prelim Adj's Rep Ann. Rep 12120 Amount Chg %Chg 

5100 PSC Assessment 

5120 Utilities &Phone 


5130 Materials &Supplies 

5140 Office Supplies 


5150 PurChased Water 

5160 Replacement to Lines 


5170 Contract Services 

5175 Contract Labor 


5180 Professional Fees 

5190 Insurance Expense 


5300 Miscellaneous Expense 


502 Wastewater Expenses 

5330 Miscellaneous SuppUes & Expens 

515 Depreciation 

5900 Depreciation 

535 Payroll and other taxes 

5600 Payroll Taxes 


5610 Sales Tax 

5620 Local School Tax 


545.10 	Interest on Debt 

5800 Interest Expense 
5810 Loan Cost Expense 
5910 Amortization 

2,491.48 
28,814.98 

88,240.39 
16,086.17 

421.654.85 
0.00 

2,500.00 
7,137.00 

103,696.00 

23,634.26 

51,786.84 

20,916.70 
20,916.70 

334,418.32 

334,418.32 

10,644.99 
10,690.72 

(70.41 ) 
24.68 

121,742.41 
123,016.25 

450.00 

(1,723.84 ) 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 
0.00 
0.00 

0.00 
0.00 
0.00 
0.00 

0.00 
0.00 

0.00 

0.00 
0.00 

0.00 
0.00 

0.00 
0.00 

0.00 
0.00 

(20,516.60) 
(20,516.60 ) 

0.00 
0.00 

0.00 

2,491.48 
28,814.98 
88,240.39 
15,086.17 

421,654.85 
0.00 


2,500.00 

7.137.00 

103,696.00 

23.634.26 

51,786.64 


20.916.70 

20,916.70 


334,418.32 
334,418.32 4-1 

10,644.99 

10,690.72 
(70.41 ) 
24.68 

101,225.81 
102,499.65 7-1 

450.00 
(1,723.84) 

0.00 

2,451.03 40.45 2 
25,216.65 3.598.43 14 
41,830.85 46,409.54 111 
13,083.29 2,002.88 15 

410.229.52 	 11.425.33 3 
18,743.25 (18.743.25X100) 

551.00 1,949.00 354 
6.280.00 857.00 14 

155,340.00 	 (51,644.00) (33) 
24,569.29 (935.03) (4 ) 
46,463.75 5,323.09 11 

17,390.50 3,526.20 20 

17,390.50 3,526.20 20 

3;J8,856.29 (4,431.97) (1 ) 
338,856.29 (4,437.97) (1 ) 

12,349.01 (1,704.02) (14) 
12,377.81 (1,687.09) (14) 

(24.33 ) (46.08) 189 
(4.47) 29.15 (652) 

109,789.78 (8,563.97) (8) 

111,063.62 (8,563.97) (8) 
450.00 0.00 0 

(1,723.84 ) 0.00 0 

0.00 0.00 

Net Income (Loss) (90,705.83 ) 	 (39.221.15) (207,119.99) 167,898.84 (81 ) 
1. Client 
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Lyon County Water District 

P.O. Box 489 


5464 U.S. Hwy 62 West 

Kuttawa, KY 42055 


270-388-0271 


July 25, 2022 

Jessica K Daniel, CPA PSC 
PO Box 909 
Eddyville, KY 42038 

This representation letter is provided in connection with your audit of the fmancial statements of Lyon 
County Water DistIict, which comprise the respective fmancial position of the business-type activities as 
of December 31, 2021, and the respective changes in fmancial position and, where applicable, cash flows 
for the year then ended, and the disclosures (collectively, the "financial statements'~, for the purpose of 
expressing opinions as to whether the financial statements are presented fairly, in all material respects, in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States ofAmerica (U.S. GAAP). 

Certain representations in this letter are described as being limited to matters that are material. Items are 
considered material, regardless of size, if they involve an omission or misstatement of accounting 
infonnation that, in light of surrounding circumstances, makes it probable that the judgment of a 
reasonable person relying on the information would be changed or influenced by the omission or 
misstatement. An omission or misstatement that is monetarily small in amount could be considered 
material as a result of qualitative factors. 

We confmn, to the best of our knowledge and belief, as of July 25, 2022, the following representations 
made to you during your audit. 

Financial Statements 

1) 	 We have fulfilled our responsibilities, as set out in the tenus of the audit engagement letter dated 
January 13,2022, including our responsibility fbr the preparation and fair presentation of the financial 
statements in accordance with U.S. GAAP and for preparation of the supplementary information in 
accordance with the applicable criteria. 

2) 	 The financial statements referred to above are fairly presented in conformity with U.S. GAAP and 
include all properly classified funds and other financial information of the primary government and 
all component units required by generally accepted accounting principles to be included in the 
financial reporting entity. 

3) 	 We acknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal 
control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of fmandal statements that are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

4) 	 We acknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal 
conll'01 to prevent and detect fraud. 

5) 	 Significant assumptions we used in malting accounting estimates, including those measured at fair 
value, are reasonable. 

6) 	 Adjustments or disclosures have been made for all events, including instances of noncompliance, 
subsequent to the date 6f the financial statements that would require adjustment to or disclosure in the 
fmandal statements. 

This institution is an equal opportunity provider 



7) 	 The effects of all known actual or possible litigation, claims, and assessments have been accounted 
for and disclosed in accordal1ce with U.s. GAAP. 

8) 	 Guarantees, whether written or oral, under which the water distdct is contingently Hable, if any, have 
been properly recorded or disclosed. 

Information Provided 

9) 	 We have provided you with: 

a) Access to all information, of which we are aware, that is relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of the financial statements, such as records, documentation, and other matters. 

b) Addi~onal information that you have requested from us for the purpose of the audit. 

c) Unrestricted access to persons within the water district from whom you determined it necessary to 
obtain audit evidence. 

d) Minutes of the meetings of Board of Commissioners or summaries of actions of recent meetings 
for which minutes have not yet been prepared. 

10) All material transactions:have been recorded in the accounting records and are reflected in the 
financial statements. 

11) We have disclosed to you the results of our assessment of the risk that the financial statements may be 
materially misstated as a result offraud. 

12) We have no knowledge of any fraud or suspected fraud that affects the water distri~t and involves­

• 	 Management, 

• 	 Employees who have significant roles in internal control, or 

• Others where the fraud could have a material effect on the financial statements. 

13) We have no knowledge of any allegations of fraud or suspected fraud affecting the water district's 
financial statements comri:lUnicated by employees, former employees, regulators, or others. 

14) We have no knowledge of instances of noncompliance or suspected noncompliance with provisions 
of laws, regulations, contracts, or grant agreements, or abuse, whose effects should be considered 
when preparing fmancial statements. 

15) We have disclosed to you all known actual or possible litigation, claims, and assessments whose 
effects should be considered when preparing the fmancia1 statements. 

16) We have disclosed to you the identity of the water district's related parties and all the related party 
relationships and transactions of which we are aware. 

Government-specific 

17) 111ere have been no communications from regulatory agencies concerning noncompliance with, or 
deficiencies in, financial reporting practices. 

18) We have a process to track the status of audit findings and recommendations. 

19) We have identified to you any previous audits, attestation engagements, and other studies related to 
the audit obj ectives and whether related recommendations have been implemented. 

20) We have identified to you any investigations or legal proceedings that have been initiated with respect 
to the period under audit. 

21) We have provided oui views on reported fmdings, conclusions, and recommendations, as well as our 
planned corrective actions, for the report. 



Lyon County Water District 

P.O. Box 489 


5464 U.S. Hwy 62 West 

Kuttawa, KY 42055 


270-388-0271 


22) The water district has no plans or intentions that may materially affect the carrying value or 
classification of assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, deferred inflows of resources, and 
net positon. 

23) We are responsible for compliance with the laws, regulations, and provisions of contracts and grant 
agreements applicable to us, including tax or debt limits and debt contracts, and legal and contractual 
provisions for reporting specific activities in separate funds. 

24) We have appropriately disclosed all information for conduit debt obligations in accordance with 
GASBS No.9!. 

25) We have identified and disclosed to you all instances of identified and suspected fraud and 
noncompliance with provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements that we believe 
have a material effect on the fmancial statements. 

26) There are no violations or possible violations of budget ordinances, laws and regulations (including 
those pertaining to adopting, approving, and amending budgets), provisions of contracts and grant 
agreements, tax or debt limits, and any related debt covenants whose effects should be considered for 
disclosure in the fmancial statements, or as a basis for recording a loss contingency, or for reporting 
on noncompliance. 

27) As part of your audit, you assisted with preparation of the fmancial statements and related notes. We 
acknowledge our responsibility as it relates to those nonaudit services, including that we assume all 
management responsibilities; oversee the services by designating an individual, preferably within 
senior management, who possesses suitable skill, knowledge, or experience; evaluate the adequacy 
and results of the ..services performed; and accept responsibility for the results of the services. We 
have reviewed, approved, and accepted responsibility for those financial statements and disclosures. 

28) The water district has satisfactory title to all owned assets, and there are no liens or encumbrances on 
such assets nor has any asset been pledged as collateral. 

29) The water district has complied with all aspects of contractual agreements that would have a material 
effect on the financial statements in the event of noncompliance. 

30) The financial statements include all component units as well joint ventures with an equity interest, 
and properly disclose all other joint ventures and other related organizations. 

31) The financial statements include all fiduciary activities required by GASBS No. 84. 

32) The financial statements properly classify all funds and activities in accordance with GASBS No. 34, 
as amended. 

33) All funds that meet the quantitative criteria in GASBS Nos. 34 and 'XL for presentation as major are 
identified and presented as such and all other funds that are presented as major are particularly 
important to fUlancial statement users. 

34) Components of net position (net investment in capital assets; restricted; and unrestricted) and 
classifications of fund balance (nonspendable, restricted, committed, assigned, and unassigned) are 
properly classified and, ifapplicable, approved. 

35) hlVestments, derivative instruments, and land and other real estate held by endowments are properly 
valued. 

ThiS institution is an equal opportunity provider 



36) Provisions for wlcollectible receivables have been properly identified and recorded. 

37) Expenses have been appropriately classified in or allocated to functions and programs in the 
statement ofactivities, and allocations have been made on a reasonable basis. 

38) Revenues are appropriately classified in the statement of activities within program revenues, general 
revenues, contributions to tenn or pennanent endowments, or contributions to permanent fund 
principal. 

39) Interfund, internal, and intra-entity activity and balances have been appropriately classified and 
reported. 

40) Deposits and investment securities and derivative instruments are properly classified as to risk and are 
properly disclosed. 

41) Capital assets, including infrastructure and intangible assets, are properly capitalized, reported, and, if 
applicable, depreciated. : 

42) We have appropriately disclosed the water district's policy regarding whether to first apply restricted 
or unrestricted resources when an expense is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and 
unrestricted net position is available and have detennined that net position is properly recognized 
under the policy. 

43) We are following our established accounting policy regarding which resources (that is, restricted, 
committed, assigned, or unassigned) are considered to be spent first for expenditures for which more 
than one resource classification is available. That policy determines the ftmd balance classifications 
for fmancial reporting pruposes. 

44) We acknowledge our responsibility for the required supplementary infonnation (RSI). The RSr is 
measured and presented within prescribed guidelines and the methods of measurement and 
presentation have not changed from those used in the prior period. We have disclosed to you any 
significant asstunptions and interpretations underlying the measurement and presentation ofthe RSI. 

45) With respect to the water district's required supplementary infonnation: 

1) 	 We acknowledge our responsibility for presenting the required supplementary infonnation(RSI) 
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States ofAmerica, and 
we believe the RSI, including its fonn and content, is fairly presented in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. The methods of 
measurement and presentation of the RSI have 110t changed from those used in the prior period, 
and we have disclosed to you any significant assumptions or interpretations tmderlying the 
measurement and presentation ofthe supplementary information. 

2) 	 [fthe required supplementary infonnation is not presented with the audited financial· statements, 
we will make the audited fmancial statements readily available to the intended users of the 
supplementary information no later than the date we issue the supplementary infoIDmtion and the 
auditor's report thereon. 



Lyon County Water District 
P.O. Box4S9 

5464 U.S. Hwy 62 West IIJ' tJriJ~~8~~~~55 ~ 
Signature: ~I{~__ Signature: B"a..... ~a: 
Title: Superintendent Title: ~~___________ 

Signature: --;;I'----=~--_-_-_-

Title: Office Manager 
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8/20/2021 8:24:45 AM - We a call from Sanctuary on 
Tuesday that the AC was out. Sure enough, it was. It was 
low on freon. Matt recharged and it is working fine. We 
were told the worker would not back in the office until 
Friday (today). This morning I noticed a vehicle parked 
there so I went to talk to Kayla about the AC. It was not 

r. It was Leann Brummett. She said she works Lyon 
Caldwell and another county. She said this is only her 2d 
week on the job and that Kayla is no longer with the 
cabinet. I told her if there are more problems h the AC 
to let us know. mlw 

8/23/21 - Matt came by w/ the ce call bill 
charging the unit at 625. He said we need to keep a record 
so if it gets low again he can measure the rate of the 

k. A copy of invoice w/ amount of freon is 
scanned in the HVAC folder. Mlw 

5/31/2022 3:01:13 PM Lee recei an email that A/C 
was not working. I went to the door but it was loc . Rae 
Ann Brummett cal from 270/348-3515 and said she was back 
in the office. I went there. The rmostat was set on 68 

it was 74 in unit. I chec the filter. It was 
black and was st changed five rs ago. I went to 
Akridge's and bought two 20x20 lters. Got back about one 
hour after taking the old filter out. It had dropped from 
74 to 72. Put one in and gave the other to Rae Ann to have 
as a spare. I as her to let us know in the morning if it 
was not cooled out. Mlw 
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KENTUCKY INFRASTRUCTURE AUTHORITY 

Andy Beshear 
Governor 

100 Airport Road 
Frankfort, Kentucky 40601 

(502) 573·0260 

Edith Halbleib 
Executive Director 

(502) 696-0676 (fax) 
kia.ky.gov 

February 10, 2020 

The Honorable Don Robertson, Chairman 
Lyon County Water District 
PO Box 489 
Kuttawa, KY 42055 

KENTUCKY INFRASTRUCTURE AUTHORITY 

FEDERALLY ASSISTED DRINKING WATER REVOLVING LOAN FUND 


CONDITIONAL COMMITMENT LETTER (F20-034) 


Dear Chairman Robertson: 

The Kentucky Infrastructure Authority ("the Authority") commends your efforts to improve 
public.service facilities in your community. On February 6, 2020, the Authority approved 
your loan for the Water System and Storage Tank Improvements project subject to the 
conditions stated in Attachment A to this letter. The total cost of the project shall not 
exceed $2,094,675 without prior authorization, of which the Authority is the sole source 
of the funding. The final loan amount will be equal to the amount of funds disbursed for 
the project. Attachment B incorporated herein by reference fully describes the project. 

An Assistance Agreement will be executed between the Authority and lithe Lyon County 
Water District" upon satisfactory performance of the conditions set forth in Attachment A. 
You must meet the conditions set forth in Attachment A and enter into an Assistance 
Agreement by February 10, 2021 (twelve months from the date of this letter). A one-time 
extension of up to six months may be granted for applicants that experience extenuating 
circumstances. Funds will be available for disbursement only after execution of the 
Assistance Agreement. 



Chairman Robertson 
February 10, 2020 
Page 2 

Please Inform the Authority of any changes in your financing plan as .soon as possible. 
We wish you. every SUCgess for this project which will benefit both your community and 
the Commonwealth as a whole. 

Sincerely, 

d~/Al4
Linda Brldwell,PE 
Deputy Executive Director 
Kentucky Infrsstructure Authority 

Attachments 

cc: 	 Kyle Cunningham, PE:ADD 

HDR, Mike Hansen 


Please sign and return a copy of this letter Indicating your acceptance of this commitment 
and Its terms along with the completed "Transparency Act Reporting Information 
Form".' Complete the attached "Authorlzation for Electronic peposit of Vendor Payment 
Form" and the "ACH Debit Authorization Form" and return to the US Bank address at 
the bottom ,of each form. Also included are the "Legal Counsel Certification Letter" 
sample-and the "Statement of Approval of Projections of Revenue and Expenses" for you 
to complete at the appropriate time. 

We have attached an SRF loan checklist to use as a guide. 

~~ .. Accepted 



Chairman Robertson 
February 10, 2020 , 
Attachment A 

The Assistance Agreement and this commitment shall be subject, but not limited to, the 
following terms: 

1. 	 The Authority project loan shall not exceed $2,094,675 without prior 
authorization. 

2. 	 This loan was not eligible for principal forgiveness. 

3. 	 The loan shall bear interest at the rate of 2.50% per annum commencing 
with the first draw of funds. 

4. 	 Interest shall be payable on the, amount of actual funds received. The first 
payment shall be due on June 1, or December 1, immediately succeeding 
the date of the initial draw of funds, provided that if such June 1, or 
December 1, shall be less than three months since the date of the initial 
draw of funds, then the first interest payment date shall be the June 1, or 
December 1, which is at least six months "from the date of tile initial draw of 
funds. Interest payments will be due each six months thereafter until the 
loan is repaid. KIA requires. the use of Automated Clearing House (ACH) 
debits for payment of all balances due on the loan. This will ensure that 
payments are credited timely to your account without the risk of incurring 
late payment fees. If the due date falls on a weekend or holiday your 
account will be debited on the next business day. Please complete and 
return the attached authorization form to U.S. Bank for processing. 

5. 	 Full principal payments wit! commence on the appropriate June 1, or 
December 1, within' twelve months from initiation of operation. Full 
payments will be due' each six months thereafter until the loan is repaid. 

6. 	 The loan shall be repaid over a period not to exceed 20 years from the date 
of initiation of operation for the project. 

7. 	 A loan servicing fee of 0.25% of the outstanding loan b'alance shall be 
payable to the Authority as a part of each interest payment. 

8. 	 Loan funds will only be disbursed after execution of the Assistance 
Agreement as project costs are incurred. 

9. 	 The Authority loan funds must be expended within six months of the official 
date of initiation of operation .. 

10. Fund "F" loan funds may be considered to be federal funds. OMB Circular 
A-133, "Audits of States, Local Governments and Non-Profit Organizations, 



Chairman, Robertson 
February 10, 2020 
Attachment A:: , 

requir:es that all recipients and sub;..recipients expending $750,000 or more 
in a year in federal awar~s must have a single or program-specific 
audit conducted for that year in accordance with the Circular. If the 
federal amount expended plus all other federal funds expended exceeds 
the threshold, you "are required to arrange for an A-133 audit to be 
performed by an independent, licensed, CPA, or in special cases, the 
Auditor of Public Accounts pI the ,Commonwealth of Kentucky. Please note 
that the guidance for single; audit requirements has changed for' fiscal or 
calendar year 2016 audits. Please consult with your independent auditor 
as soon as possible to understarfld'how the changes will affect you. 

. '. 	 ; 

11. 	 The Authority requires that an adnual financial audit be provided for the life 
ofthe loan." , , 

12. 	 The final Assistance Agreement must be approved by ordinance or 
resolution, asapplicable, of~he oity council or appropriate governing board. 

13. 	 The Borrower must maintain a1.1 (Jabt coverage ratio throllghout thelifeof 
the KIAlban. All borrowers are subject to'at least an annuaHinancial review 
for compliance: ' 

The following is a list of the standard col)ditions to be satisfied prior to execution of the 
, Assistance Agreement or incorporated in the Assistance Agreement. Any 'required 
documentation must be submitted to the party designated. ' 

1. 	 The Authority to Award (bid) package must be submitted to the Division of 
Water for approval within 14 day,s of bid opening. ' 

2. 	 The Assistance Agreement must be executed within six (6) months from bid 
opening.' 

3. 	 The loan must undergo review by the Capital Projects and Bond Oversight 
Committee of the Kentucky Legislature prior to the State'$'~,§xecution of the 
Assistance Agreement. The committee meets monthly on the third 
TuesdCiY. Any special conditions listed in' Attachment B must be satisfied 
before the project is presented before the Committee. 

4.. 	 Any required adjustmeAt in utility service rates shall 'be adopted by 
ordinance, mUnicipal order or resolution by the appropriate governing body 
of the Borrower. Public hearings as required by law shall be held prior to 
the adoption: of the' service rate ordinance, order, or resolution. Any 
required approvals by the Kentucky Public Service Commission shall be 



- -
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Chairman Robertson 
February 10, 2020 
Attachment A 

5. 

6. 

7. 

8. 

9. 

10. 

11. 

12. 

13. 

14. 

obtained. 
, 	 ­

_	The Borrower must complete and return the attached "Authorization for 
Electronic Deposit of V~ndor Payment" form to U.S. Bank .. 

The Borrower must provide documentation of Eclearinghouse Endorsement 
and Eclearinghouse' Comments. ­

Prior to the project bid, an environmental review shall be conducted by the 
Division of Water for all, construction projects receiving State Revolving 
Funds ("SRF") money. 

Technical. plans and specifications and a complete SRF specifications 
checklist shall be approved ~y the Division of Water prior to project hid. 

All easements . or purchases of' land shall be·' completed prior to 
commencement of construction. Clear Site Certification of all land or 
.easement 'acquisitiorys shall be provided to the -Division cif Water.. DOW 
representatives shall be notified ·for attendance of the pre-construction 
conference. ­

Project changes or additions'deviating from the original' scope of work 
described in the Project PrOfile may require a new or amended 
environmental review and change order review before they can be included 
in the SRF loan project. ; 

The Borrower must provide certification from their legal counsel stating that 
they, have prepared construction specifications in accordaj:lc~ 'with all 
.applicablestate or federal wage rate laws, and that the procurement 
procedures, including those for construction, land, equipment and 
professional services that area 'part otthe project, are in compliance with 
applicable federal, state and local procurement laws. 

- ' 	 ­

The Borrower shall implement the Kentucky Uniform System of Accounting 
(KUSoA), oran alternative approved by the Authority and assure that rates 
and charges for services are basedupbn the cost of providi~g such service, 

The Borrower shall comply with all Davis Bacon related monitoring and 
reporting and require all contractors to ·pay wages pursuant to applicable 
prevailingwage rates forallwork relating lathe subject Project. '. 
~/ . '.. ~" 

The' project shall 'compry \.vith the-reporting requirements 'ofthe 



Chairman Robertson 
February 10, 2020 
Attachment A 

Transparency Act, and shall complete the attached Transparency Act 
Reporting Information Form and provide to the Authority no later than 30 
days after the KIA Board approval date of your loan. 

15. 	 Based on the final "as-bid" project budget, the Borrower must provide 
satisfactory proof, based on then existing conditions, that the revenue 
projections in the attached descriptions are still obtainable and that the 
projections of operating expenses have not materially changed. The "as 
bid" project budget shall be reviewed and approved by the consulting 
engineer. 

16. 	 The project shall comply with American Iron and Steel requirements of The 
Consolidated Appropriations Act of 2014 (H.R. 3547), 'which became 
effective January 17, 2014, unless engineering plans and specifications 
were approved by the Division of Water prior to the effective date. 

Any special conditions stated in Attachment B mlist be resolved. 



ATTACHMENT B 

Lyon County Water District 

F20-034 




EXECUTIVE SUMMARY Reviewer Ashley Adams 
KENTUCKY INFRASTRUCTURE AUTHORITY Date February 6, 2020 
FUND F, FEDERALLY ASSISTED DRINKING WATER KIA Loan Number F20-034 
REVOLVING LOAN FUND WRIS Number WX21143017 

BORROWER LYON COUNTY WATER DISTRICT 
LYON COUNTY 

BRIEF DESCRIPTION 

This project will help to improve water quality and resolve pressure issues throughout the system by rehabilitating 2 water tanks, 
building an interconnect to loop lines for better water circulation, upsizing a line in the Tinsley Creek Subdivision. and replacing a 
creek crossing near KY 274 that is in danger of failure. 

PROJECT FINANCING 

Fund F Loan $2,094,675 

TOTAL $2,094,675 

pROJECT BUDGET RD Fee % Actual % 

Administrative Expenses $50,000 
Legal Expenses 15.000 

Eng - Design I Const 7.8% 4.4% 81,150 

Eng" Insp 4.8% 5.8% 106,025 
. Construction 1,675,000 
Contingency 167,500 

TOTAL $2,094.675 

REPAYMENT Rate 2.50% Est. Annual Payment $138,967 
. Term 20 Years 1st Payment 6 Mo. after first draw 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES' Engin~~r: HDR 
Bond Counsel Rubin & Hays 

PROJECT SCHEDULE" . Bid 0p€Hlin'g Mar-20 
Construction Start Apr-20 
Construction Stop Aua-21 

DEBT PER CUSTOMER Existing $1.891 
Proposed $2,473 

OTHER DEBT See Attached 

OTHER STATE-FUNDED PROJECTS LAST 5 YRS See Attached 
.. 

RESIDENTIAL RATES User~ Avg.BiII 
Current 2,649 $46.24 (for 4,000 gallons) 
Additional 0 $46.24 ~for 4,000 gallons). 

, .. 
REGIONAL COORDINATION This pri;ljecfis consistent with, regional planning recommendations. 

.CASHFLOW 
I Cash FloW Before 

Debt Service Debt Service ICash Flow After Debt Service I Coverage Ratio 
Audited 2016 278,617 120,909 157,708 2.3 
Audited 2017 401,254 , 126,621 274,633 3.2 
Audited 2018 281,165 224,090 57,075 1.3 
Projected 2019 281,165 261,542 19,623 1.1 
Projected 2020 281,165 253,720 27,445 1.1 
Projected 2021 281.165 254,044 27,121 1.1 
Projected 2022 476,894­ 398,446 78,448 1.2 
Projected 2023 457,441 398,781 58,660 1.1 



'".\ 
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Reviewer: Ashley Adams 
Date: February 6, 2020 

Loan Number: F20-034 

KENTUCKY INFRASTRUCTURE AUTHORITY 

DRINKING WATER STATE REVOLVING FUND (FUND F) 


LYON COUNTY WATER DISTRICT, LYON COUNTY 

, PROJECT REVIEW 

WX21·143017 

I. PROJECT DESCRIPTION 

The Lyon County Water' District is requesting a Fund F loan in the amount of 
$2,094,675 for the Water System and Storage Tank Improvements project. This 
project will address several areas throughout the distribution system to help improve 
water age, water quality, pressure issues, and maintenance in the system. 

Two water tanks will be rehabilit~ted including the Lamasco glass lined standpipe tank 
and the Jack Thompson tank. The Lamasco tank needs coating on the interior to 
mitigate a rust problem as well asiristall~tion of a mixing system and work on the 
exterior valve vault to install a bypass Valve for better control at the tank site. The Jack 
Thompson elevated sto,rage tank needs coating on the interior and exterior per the 
latest inspection. . 

The project will also loop several lines in the KY 295 area in order to increase 
circulation of water and improve water quality. This includes an interconnect between 
KY 295 and KY 373 and another between US 62 and KY 295. The KY 373 to KY 295 
Loop project is a . project that loops a line'that dead ends at the City ·of Eddyville's 
master meter valve. The line is also the first phase in allowing the Crittenden 
Livingston County Water District to serve the City of Kuttawa as a backup source or 
possibly a primary source. In addition, the loop will allow additional water to be 
transmitted by the City of Eddyville to the City of Kuttawa as a backup watersourcEL 

The US 62 & KY 295 project provides another connection between the Lyon County 
Water District and the City of Kuttawa. Along with the KY 373 to KY 295 project 
described above, the project provides a means of allowing Kuttawa to receive water 
from the Crittenden Livingston County Water District and a highf3r ,(olume feed from 
the City of Eddyville. The new feed will currently serve as a backup water supply for 
Kuttawa and could serve as Kuttawa's primary water supply in the event Kuttawa 
ceases operation of its water treatment plant. . i 

In addition, an undersized 2" line in the Tinsley Creek Subdivision will be replaced with 
an adequately sized line to resolve water quality and pressure issues in the area and 
a creek crossing near KY 274 will also be replaced as the line is very shallow and»in 
danger of immediate failure. 
'" .. 

The Lyon County Water District is a PSC regulated distribution system thatddes'not 
produce water. The District purchases approximately 111 MG of; water annually 



primarily. from the Kuttawa Water Department (41 MG) and PrincetonWater (41 MG) 
in addition to the Crittenden-Livingston County Water District (12 MG). and the 
Eddyville Water Departrhent (6 MG). 

II. 	 PROJECT BUDGET 
Total 

Administrative Expenses 
Legal Expenses 
Engineering Fees - Design 
Engineering Fees - Construction 
Engineering Fees - Inspection 
. Construction 
Contingency 

$ .. 50,000 
15,000 
50,000 
31,150 

106,025 
1,675,000 

167,500 

Total $ 2,094,675 

III. PROJECT FUNDING 
Amount 

Fund F Loan $ 2,094,675 100% 

Total $ 2,094,675 100% 

IV. KIA DEBT SERVICE 
Construction Loan 
Less: Principal Forgiveness 
Amortized Loan Amount 
Interest Rate 
Loan Term (Years) 
Estimated Annual Debt Service 
Administrative Fee (0.25%) 
Total Estimated Annual Debt Service 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

2,094,675 

2,094,675 
2.50% 

20 
133,730 

5,237 
138,967 

V. PRO...IECT SCHEDU LE 

Bid Opening March 2020 
Construction Start April 2020 
Construction Stop . . 'August 2021 . 

VI. CUSTOMER COMPOSITION AND RATE STRUCTURE 

A) Customers 

Residential 
Commercial 
Total 

Current 
·2,607 

42 
2,649 



" .. 

B) Rates 
Current Prior 

Date of Last Rate Increase 01/07/16 04/23/15 

Minimum (2,000 gallons) $25.00 $20.02 
Next 3,000 Gallons 10.62 8.50 

Cost for 4,000 gallons $46.24 $37.02 

Increase % 24.9% 

Affordability Index (Rate/MHI) 1.1% 


VII. DEMOGRAPHICS 

Based on current Census data from the American Community Survey 5-Year Estimate 
2013-2017, the Utility's service area population was 4,039 with a Median Household 
Income (MHI) of $51,086. The median household income for the Commonwealth is 
$46,535. The project will qualify for a 2.5% interest rate based on MHI. 

County 
. Population Unemployment 

% 
Year , County Change Date Rate 

. 1980 6,490 June 2005 7.0% 

1990 6,624 .2.1% June 2010 10.1% 

2000 8,080 22.0% June 2015 5.2% 

2010 '8,314. 2.9% June 2019 5.1% 

Current 8,268 -0.6% 

Cumulative % 27.4% 

VIII. 2019 CAPITALIZATION GRANT EQUIVALENCIES 

1) Green Project Reserve - The, Drinking Water capitalization grant does not contain 
a "green" requirement. -,. 

2) Additional Subsidization - This project does not qualify for additional subsidization. 

IX. FINANCIAL ANALYSIS 

Financial information was obtained from the audited financial statements for the years 
ended June 30, 2016 through June 30,2018. The non-cash impact of GASB 68, 
Accounting C1.nd Financial Reporting for Pensions, has been removed from fiscal 2016­
2018 operating expenses andGASB 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for 
Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions, has been removed from 2018 
operating expenses. Percentage references in the History section below are based on 
whole dollar amounts and not the rounded amounts presented. 



HISTORY 

Revenues have averaged approximately $1.2 million from 2016 to 2018 while 
operating expenses have increased 3.4% from $922,389 in 2016 to $953,566 in 2018. 
The District's last rate increase occurred in 2016 when rates jumped 25%. The District 
is currently undergoing a rate study by their engineering firm in order to apply for 
another rate increase at the PSC which will include projected revenue needs for this 
project as well as several other necessary capital projects for the system. Debt 
coverage was 2.3 in 2016, 3.2 in 2017, and 1.3 in 2018. Debt service wasadjllsted in 
2017 to remove an interim financing payoff to Kentucl<.yRural Water Association which 
was replaced with KIA loan F12-02 for another water quality system improvement 
project to normalize the debt coverage ratio. . 

The balance sheet reflects a current ratio of 2.0, a debt to equity ratio of 1.6, 52.5 days 
sales in accounts receivable, and 5.4 months operating expenses in unrestricted cash. 

PROJECTIONS 

Projections are based on the following assumptions: 

1) Revenues will increase at least' $220,000 or 18% annually upon approval of the 
PSC in order to support inFlation and debt service for this loan .. 

2) Expenses will increase 2% for inflation starting in the year debt service begins 
on this pending loan. Inflation. expense has been removed from projections in 
2019-2021 as this is the only thing driving rate increase needs during that time 
period. . 

3) Debt service coverage is 1.2 in 2022 when principal and interest repayments 
begin. 

Based on the pro forma assumptions, the utility shows adequate cash flow to repay 
the KIA Fund F loan . 

. REPLACEMENT RESERVE 

The replacement res'erva will be 5% ($104,000 total) of the final amount b'Orrowed 
(prior to principal forgiveness, if any) to be funded annually ($5,200 yearly) each 
December 1 for 20 years and maintained for the life of the loan. 

X. DEBT OBLIGATIONS 
Outstanding Maturity 

Regions - Series 2013. C $ 1,115,000 2040 
USDA": Series 2016 1 ,900,000 2046 
KIA Loan (F12-02) 1,959,089 2038 
Capital Lease 34,774 2020 

Total $ 5,008,863 



XI. CONTACTS 


Legal Applicant 
Entity Name Lyon County Water District 

Authorized Official . Don Robertson (Chairman) 

County Lyon 

Email Iyoncou ntyw24 787@bellsouth.net 

Phone 270-388-0271 

Address PO Box 489 

Kuttawa, KY 42055 

-Applicant Contact 

Name Dixie Cayce 

Organization Lyon County Water District 

Email dixie ;cayce@att.net 

Phone 270-388-0271 . 

Address PO Box 489 

Kuttawa, KY 42055 

Project Administrator 
Name . Kyle Cunningham 

Organization PEADD. 

Email kyle.cunningham@ky.gov 

Phone 270-886-9484 

Address 300 Hammond Dr I 
~______________~H~o~p~k=jn~s~v=ill~ei~I<~Y~4=22=4=0~~ 

Consulting Engineer . 
PE Name· ., Mike Hansen 

Firm Name HDR 

Email r'nike.hansen@hdrinc.com 

Phone 270-443-7600 

Address 2550 Irvin Cobb Rd 

Paducah, KY 42003 



XII. RECOMMENDATIONS 

KIA staff recommends approval of the loan with the standard conditions: 

1} 	By March 1, 2020, the District will need to apply to the Public Service 
Commission (PSC) for debt authorization for the $2,094,675 million loan. This 
debt authorization application should include a forecast for meeting debt 
service projected through no less than 2025. 

2} 	By March 1, 2020, the District will need a resolution from the Lyon County 
Water District Board, demonstrating their intentions to increase revenues as 
necessary and authorized by the PSC to meet the loan requirements over the 
life of the loan. KIA Staff review indicates that revenues would need to increase 
by $220,000 annually which equates to an approximate 18% rate increase by 
January 1, 2022 to meet expenses and debt service in the first full year of 
repayment. 

3} Prior to the assistance agreement being executed, the District must receive a 
Certificate of Public Convenience and Necessity from the PSCfor any portion 
of the project that may be necessary or provide an opinion from the staff of the 
PSC that a CPCN.is not required for any portion of the assets to be constructed 
as part of the loan agreement. . 

~ ; 



LYON COUNTY WATER DISTRICT 

FINANCIAL SUMMARY (DECEMBER YEAR END) 

Balance Sheel 

Audited 

2016 

Audlled 

2017 

Audited 

2018 

Projected 

2019 

Projected 

2020 

Projected 

2021 

Projected 

2022 

Projected 

2023 

Assets 

Current Assets 

Other Assets 

469,955 

11,167,361 

712,802 

9,253,211 

652,731 

8,836,080 

656,625 

8,393,442 

662,114 

9,134,704 

667,538 

9,875,706 

714,927 

9,558,066 

726,659 

9,224,595 

Total 11,637,316 9,966,013 9,488,811 9,050,067 9,796,818 10,543,244 10,272,993 9,951,254 

Liabilities & Equity 

Current Liabilities 

Long Term Liabilities 

4,415,176 

3,431,550 

2,346,033 

3,656,711 

333,446 

5,443,627 

311,515 

4,642,067 

316,116 

5,510,979 

325,75!; 

6,371,65:~ 

469,395 

6,042,750 

474,095 

5,710,647 

Total Liabilities 7,646,726 6,002,744 5,777,073 4,953,582 5,827,097 6,697,408 6,512,145 6,184,742 

Net Assets 3,790,590 3,963,269 3,711,736 4,096,465 3,969,721 3,645,836 3,760,648 3,766,512 

Cash Flow 

Revenues 1,200,355 1,244,269 1,231,775 1,231,775 1,231,775 1,231,775 1,451,775 1,451,775 

Operating Expenses 922,389 844,700 953,566 953,566 953,566 953,566 977,837 997,290 

Other Income 651 1,685 2,056 2,956 2,956 2,9513 2,956 2,956 

Cash Flow Before Debl Service 276,617 401,254 281,165 261,165 281,165 281,165 476,894 457,441 

Debt Service 

Existing Deb! Service 120,909 126,621 224,090 261,542 253,720 254,044 259,479 259,814 

Proposed KIA Loan 

Total Debt Service 

Cash Flow After Debt Service 

Ratios 

Current Ratio 0.1 0.3 2.0 2.1 2.1 2.0 1.5 1.5 

Debt to Equity 2.1 1.5 1.6 1.2 1.5 1.7 1.7 1.6 

Days Sales in Accounts Receivable 47.1 54.9 52.5 52.5 52.5 52.5 52.5 52.5 

Months Operating Expenses in Unrestricted Cash 3.6 6.9 5.4 5.4 5.5 5.6 5.7 5.7 

Debt Coverage Ratio 2.3 3.2 1.3 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.2 1.1 

1/30/20203:35 PM, FlnanciafsPresentation 
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County Budget Preparation and State Local Finance Officer Policy Manual Page 84 

For DLG staff use on I;::Page 1 	 NOTIFICATION OF INTENT TO FINANCE 

AND APPUCATION FOR DEBT APPROVAL 


Form # SLDO-t 
Revised 1/1/2011 

Completion and delivery of this form to the address below shall satisfy the requirements of KRS 65.117, which prohib­

its any city, county, urban-county, consolidated local government, charter county, special district, or taxing district from 

entering into any financing obligation of any nature, except leases under $200,000, without first notifying the state local 

debt officer in writing. This form shall also serve as application for approval of debt issuance when applicable. An 

electronic version of the form is available at www.dlg.ky.gov. 


,( Type of debt to be issued (must check one): SLDO Approval Required Complete Sections 
.".­

[J Short Term Borrowing - I<RS 65.7701 et seq. 	 No A,B,C 
-	 .­o Lease from $200,000 - $500,000 - I<RS 65.940 et seq. No A,B,D 


[J L~~seexceeding $500,000 - I<RS 6i9~0 ~t seq. Yes (Counties only) A,B,O 


· 0 General Obligation Bond - I<RS Chapter 66 Yes (Counties only) A,B,E 


Dp~blic Project R~v. Bond I<RS Ch~p~~r 58 . No A,B,E 


o P~blic Pr~jectRev. Bond ~/Lease .i<RS 66.310(2) Yes (Counties only) A,B,D,E 
.. ". 	 . 

•0 Industrial Revenue Bond -
~ 

I<RS Chapter 103 Yes (All Borrowers) A,B,F 

o Other Bonds (rrue Revenue, Utility Assessment, TIP) No .; A, B, E 

r~ I}S5 rS 7,4,vee.,4-$'J!.e..e;#tp;V r Ck.e;V:W e k jI'. f A/1=1f'4"$ r~ ".,. e r"" ~-e 
A" ..".-t. p£I' r iJ

Section A - Borrower Information 

Agency Name Lyion County Water District 


Governing Body Lyon County Water District Board of Commissioners 


Street Address 


P.O. Box # 489 City Kuttawa 


County Lyon Zip 42055 


Authorized Official Charles D. Robertson 

Section B - Terms of Financial Obligation 
Please provide all relevant it1formation. Fields in bold are mandatory. 

Principle Amount: $2,094,675.00' Date of Issue: 	 8/1/2023 

Maturity Date(s): 8/1/2043 , Payment Schedule: (must attach schedule) 


Term: 20 years .Number of Renewal Periods: o 

. Interest Rate(s): 2.50Type ofIllterest (fixed ot variable): fixed 


Retirement Method: periodic interest and principal payments on a fully amortized loan 


Lender's Name: Kentucky Infrastructure Authority 


Lender's Address: 100 Airport Road, Frankfort, Kentucky 40601 


Right of Termination: yes 


Termination Penalties: none 


Prepayment Provisions: none 


. Trustee or Paying Agent: none 


AOC Funded Percentage: 0.00 


http:2,094,675.00
http:www.dlg.ky.gov


- -

County Budget Preparation and State Local Finance Officer Policy Manu,;l Page 85 

Page 2 	 NOTIFICATION OF INTENT TO FINANCE 

AND APPLICATION FOR DEBT APPROVAL 


Form # SLDO-l 

Revised 1/1/2011 


Section C - Note (Loan) Infonnation/Documentation 

Purpose Briefly explain the documented need that necessitates this note Qoan) and the public purpose it is intended 
to address. (Attach additional information if necessary): 

Pledge ofTaxes/De;scription: 

None 

Pledge of Revenue/Description: 

The Water District's revenues from water sales will be pledged as collateral for the loan. 

Pledge of Project Revenues (Attach documentation which substantiates the revenue projections): 

Have bids been sought by the local governments to determine the financial and programmatic competitiveness of the 
note (Joan) proposal? OYes 0 No . 

If No, explain what steps were taken to ensure adequate competition. 
~ ~ - ~-. .~ ~ 

Loan was obtained from the Kentucky Infrastructure Authority, a public corporation and an agency of the Commonwealth of 

Kentucky. 


Reqllired Attachments 

1. Certification from local government attesting to the ability to meet additional financial commitments necessitated 
by the note and statement as to taxes and revenues to be collected during the term of the note. 

Section D - Lease Infonnation/Documentation 

Describe the real or personal properry to be acquired or constructed: 

N/A - no real or personal property will be leased. 

. . 

Type of Lease: 0 General Obligation DRevenue 

Is Lease Annuall), Renewable? a Yes 0 No 

Does Agency seek approval without a hearing? OYe~ ONo Justification: D Revenue C1Refunding 

If yes, must attach certification from counsel regarding counry obligation. 

Does this lease refund a prior lease? a Yes 0 No 

Ifyes, please state the name, date and principal amount of original issue(s) being refunded: 
" . 

Required Attachments (If lease reqllires SLDO approval) 

1. 	 Minutes from the local public hearing 
2. 	 Affidavit of publication of SLDO hearing (if hearing is required) and newspaper advertisement tear sheet 
3. 	 Copy of lease. 
4. 	 Executed copy of ordinance/resolution of fiscal court author:zing the lease 
5. 	 Certificutio,n from lo(;al government . to the ability to meet additional financial commitments necessitated 

by the lease and statement as to ta~es and revcl1Ues to be collected during the term of the !eas~.; 

Please continue to the next page 
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Section E - Bond Information/Documentation 
Please provide all relevant information. Fields in bold are mandatory 

Describe the purpose of the bond: 

No bonds will be issued 

Bond Counsel: 

Counsel Address: 

Financial Advisor: 

Advisor Address: 

Bond Series: 

Call Date: 

Does this bond refund a prior bond? 0 Yes 0 No 

If yes, please state the name, date and principal amount of originallssue(s) being refunded: 

Required Attachments (If SLDO Approval is Required) 

1, Minutes from the local public hearing 

2, Affidavit of publication of SLDO hearing and newspaper advertisement tear sheet 

3. 	 Executed copy of ordinance/resolution of fiscal court authorizing financial plan for the issuance of the bonds 
4. 	 Proposed plan of financing 
5. 	 Preliminary offlcial statement (if applicable) 
G. 	 Somces and uses table 

Additional Required Attachments for KRS Chapter 103 Bonds 

1. 	 Documentation in an appropriate form substanthting the project's elih>ibility under KRS 103.2101 (1) (aHe). 
2. 	 If the project requires approval of the r!,duction in property taxes, attach any documentation provided to agency 

responsible for approval. 

****** 

By signing below, the Authorized Offidal certifies that the foregoing is true and accurate to the best of his or 
her knowledge, 

Name (please print) Charles D. Robertson Date: 5f16!~ 

Title: Board Chairman Signa~"d~ ,&4u4<1;)c 
Mail to: 


Department for Local Govemment 

Attn: State Local Debt Officer 


l024 Capital Center Drive, Suite 340 

Frankfort, KY 40601 


Fal( to: ,502-573-3712 


